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Statement of Vision, Mission,
Corporate Objectives and Strategy

&
Strategic Planning

VISION STATEMENT

To have eminent position in manufacturing and supplying
quality white refined sugar and allied products and thereby
play an important role in the economic and social
development of the country.

MISSION STATEMENT

We the Management of Enterprise, have set forth our
belief as to the purpose for which the Company is
established and the principles under which it should
operate. We pledge our entire efforts to the
accomplishment of the purpose within the agreed
principles. Sanghar Sugar Mills Limited is committed to:

+ Manufacture to the highest quality standards. Pursuing
the improvement in shareholders’ value through team
work and continuous improvement in the system in a
competitive business environment.

+ Be ethical in practice and fulfill social responsibilities.
+ Ensure afairreturn to stakeholders.

+ Realize responsibility towards society and contribute
to the environment as good corporate citizen.

CORPORATE OBJECTIVES

The over riding objective of the Company is to optimize
over the time, the return to its shareholders. To achieve
this objective, the Company shall endeavor to ensure long
term viability of its business and to manage effectively its
relationship with stakeholders. Sanghar Sugar Mills
Limited shall:

+ Recognize the need of working at the highest standard
to achieve greater level of performance in order to
meet the expectations of the stakeholders.

+ Optimize over the time, the returns to shareholders of
the Company.

+ Strive for excellence and build on the Company’s core
competencies.

+ Conduct Company’s business with integrity and supply
only quality and credible information.

+ Respect confidentiality of the information acquired
during the course of dealings with the interested

parties and refrain from acting in any manner which
might discredit the Company.

+ Operate within the regulatory framework and be free of
any vested interest which might be incompatible with
Organization’s integrity, objectivity and independence.

CORPORATE STRATEGY

Production of sugar and sugar by-products are the
Company’s main area of business. The Company, its
Director and Management:-

+ Believe in diversification through new manufacturing
facilities and through equity participation.

+ Recognize the value of technological improvement
and acquire the benefits of current innovation and
developmentin their business field.

+ Believe in professional management and modern
practices and use latest techniques available for
growth and overall prosperity.

+ Consider their human resource as the most important
asset and help them in providing facilities with regard
to training and updating their knowledge and skill and
keep them highly motivated.

+ Believe in integrity in business and the Company’s
integrity depends on integrity of each one of its
employees.

+ Consider the sugar cane growers as the most
important part of the business.

STRATEGIC PLANNING

+ Keep up with technological advancement and
continuously update the company in the field of sugar
technology.

4+ Maintain all relevant technical and professional
standards to be compatible with the requirement of the
trade.

+ Gauge the market conditions and availability of
substitute products and services and ensure quality
with cost effectiveness.

4+ Inculcate efficient, ethical and time tested business
practice inthe Company’s management.
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Code of Conduct

The entire Organization of Sanghar Sugar Mills Limited will be guided by the following principles of Code of Conduct in
its pursuit of excellence in all activities for the attainment of the Company's Objectives.

THE COMPANY

o Fulfills all statutory requirements of the government and follows all applicable laws of the Country together with
compliance with accepted accounting principles, rules and procedures required.

o Activities and involvement of directors and employees of the Company in no way conflict with the interest of the
Company. All acts and decisions of the management are motivated by the interest of the Company rather their own.

o Usesall means to protect the environment and ensures health and safety of the employees.

o Meets the expectations of the spectrum of society and government agencies by implementing an effective and fair
system of financial reporting and internal controls.

o Deals with all stakeholders in objective and transparent manner so as to meet the expectations of those who rely on
the Company.

o Ensure efficient and effective utilization of its resources.
AS DIRECTORS

o Promote and develop conducive environment through responsive policies and guidelines to facilitate viable and
timely decisions.

o Support and adherence to compliance of legal and industry requirements.
o Maintain organizational effectiveness for the achievement of the Company's goals.

o Promote a culture that supports enterprise and innovation, with appropriate short-term and long-term performance
related rewards that are fair and achievable in motivating management and employees effectively and productively.

o Ensure protection and safeguard the interest and assets of the Company and meet obligations of the Company.
AS EXECUTIVES AND MANAGERS

Ensure cost effectiveness and profitability of operations.

Provide direction and leadership for the organization and take viable and timely decisions.

Promote and develop culture of excellence, conservation and continual improvement.

Develop and cultivate work ethics and harmony among colleagues and associates.

Encourage initiatives and self realization in employees through meaningful empowerment.

Provide pleasant work atmosphere and ensure an equitable way of working and rewarding system.

O O O O o o o

Institute commitment to environmental, health and safety performance.

AS EMPLOYEES AND WORKERS

Observe Company policies, regulations and code of best business practices.

Devote productive time and continued efforts to strengthen the Company.

Make concerted struggle for excellence and quality.

Exercise prudence in effective, efficient and economical utilization of resources of the Company.

Protect and safeguard the interest of the Company and avoid conflict of interest.

O O O O o o

Maintain financial integrity and must avoid making personal gain at the Company's expense by participating in or
assisting activities which compete with the Company.
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

Notice is hereby given that Thirty First Annual General Meeting of the Shareholders of the Company will be held on Tuesday, January 31,2017 at 11:30
a.m. at Haji Abdullah Muslim Gymkhana, Old Lobby (Muslim Gymkhana), Near Shaeen Complex, Awan-e-Sadar, Sadar Town, Karachi to transact the
following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1.
2.

5.

To confirm the minutes of Extra Ordinary General Meeting of the Company held on November 23, 2016.

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended September 30, 2016 together with Directors'
and Auditors' Reports thereon.

To approve Cash Dividend at Paisa Sixty only (Rs. 0.60) per share i.e 6% as recommended by the Board of Directors for the year ended
September 30, 2016.

To appoint Auditors for the year 2016-2017 and fix their remuneration. The present Auditors M/s Kreston Hyder Bhimji & Co. Chartered
Accountants, retire and being eligible, have offered themselves for re-appointment.

Totransactany other ordinary business with the permission of the Chair.

SPECIAL BUSINESS

6.

7.

To obtain consent of shareholders in terms of S.R.0. 470(1)/2016 dated May 31, 2016 issued by Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan
(SECP), for the transmission of the annual audited accounts of the Company either through CD, DVD or USB or by other permissible electronic
mean and to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution, with or without modification:

“Resolved that transmission of annual audited accounts to the members at their registered address either through CD, DVD or USB or
by and other permissible electronic mean instead of transmitting the same in hard copies, be and is hereby approved.”

“Further Resolved that the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized to issue the annual audited accounts of the
Company to its members through CD, DVD or USB or by and other permissible electronic mean; that the Chief Executive of the
Company or the Company Secretary be and are hereby authorized to do all acts, deeds and things that may be necessary or required to
give effectto this resolution.”

To consider, and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution, with or without modification(s), as Special Resolution to alter the Articles of
Association of the Company by inserting new Articles Nos 52A, 52B and 52C to enable e-voting as required by Companies (E-Voting) Regulations,
2016, issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan vide S.R.0. 43(1)/2016 dated January 22, 2016.
“Resolved as and by way of special resolution that the Articles of Association of the Company be amended by adding following new
clauses as 52A, 52B and 52C:

52A E-Voting: The provisions and requirements for e-voting as prescribed by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan
for the time being and from time to time shall be deemed to be incorporated in these Articles of Association, irrespective of other
provisions of these Articles and notwithstanding anything contradictory therein.

52B In case of e-voting, voters may appoint either members or non-members as proxy and the Company shall comply with the
requirements of the Companies (E-Voting) Regulations, 2016 prescribed under the Companies Ordinance, 1984.

52C Aninstrument appointing a proxy may be in the following form, or in any other form which the Directors of the Company approve:

Optionl:  Appointing Other Person As Proxy

I/We, of , being a member of Sanghar Sugar Mills
Limited, holder of (number of shares) ordinary share(s) as per Registered Folio/CDC Account No.
hereby appoint Mr. of or failing whom Mr.
of as my/our proxy to vote for me /us and on my/our behalf at the (Annual and or
Extra Ordinary General Meeting, as the case may be) of the Company to be held on and at any
adjournment thereof. Signed under my/ our this day of 20
Optionll  E-Voting as per the Companies (E-Voting) Regulations, 2016
I/We, of , being a member of Sanghar Sugar Mills
Limited, holder of (number of shares) ordinary share(s) as per Registered Folio/CDC Account No.
hereby opt for e-voting through intermediary and hereby consent the appointment of execution
officer as proxy and will exercise e-voting as per the Companies (E-Voting) Regulations, 2016 and hereby
demand for poll for resolutions, my secure email address is , please send login details, password and

electronic signature through email.
Signature
(Signature should agree with the specimen
signature registered with the Company)
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Signed in the presence of:

Signature of Witness Signature of Witness
Name Name

Address Address
CNIC/PassportNo. CNIC/PassportNo.

“Further Resolved that the Chief Executive Officer or the Company Secretary of the Company be and are hereby authorized
to do all acts, deeds and things, takes all steps and action necessary, ancillary and incidental for altering the Articles of
Association of the Company including filling of all requisite documents/statutory forms as may be required to be filed with
Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan complying with all other regulatory requirements so as to effectuate the
alterations in the Articles of Association and implementing the aforesaid resolution.”

Statement under section 160 (I)(b) of the Companies Ordinance, 1984

The statement set out material facts concerning “Special Business” to be transacted at the 31st Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held
onJanuary 31,2017. The approval of the members will be sought for:

ITEM 6 OF THE AGENDA

To give effect to the notification S.R.0. 470(1) 2016 of the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP). Shareholders' approval is
being sought to allow the Company to circulate its Annual Report through CD/DVD/USB or by any other permissible electronic mean to all members.
The Company however, shall place on its website a standard request form to enable those members requiring a hardcopy of the Annual Report
instead of through CD/DVD/USB, to intimate the Company of their requirement.

Further if a member prefer to receive hard copies for all the future annual reports, then such preference of the member shall be communicated to the
Company in writing in which case the Company shall be bound to provide hard copies of all the future annual reports.

ITEM7 OF THEAGENDA

To give effect to the Companies (E-voting) Regulations 2016, shareholders' approval is being sought to amend the Articles of Association of the
Company to enable e-voting.

The directors are not interested, directly or indirectly, in the above business except to the extent of their investment as has been detailed in the
pattern of shareholding.

By Order of the Board

Muhammad Mubeen Alam
Karachi: January 10, 2017 Company Secretary

NOTES :

1. The Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from 23-01-2017 to 31-01-2017 (both days inclusive) for entitlement of cash
dividend, attending and voting at Annual General Meeting. Physical Transfers/CDS Transactions IDS received in order in all respects at the
close of the Business on 22-01-2017 at the Company's Share Registrar M/s Hameed Majeed Associates (Pvt) Limited, Karachi Chamber,
Hasrat Mohani Road, Karachi will be considered in time for entitlement of Cash Dividend as declared and attending of the meeting.

2. Amember entitled to attend and vote at this meeting may appoint another member as proxy to attend and vote on his/her behalf. Forms of
Proxy to be valid must be properly filled in/executed and received at the Registered Office of the Company at C-27, Plot No. F-24, Block-9,
Clifton, Karachi-75600, atleast 48 hours before the time of this meeting. AForm of Proxy is attached herewith.

3. Submission of copy of CNIC (Mandatory). The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (the SECP) vide their S.R.0. 779 (i) 2011
dated August 18, 2011 has directed the Company to print your Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC) number on your dividend warrants
and if your CNIC number is not available in our records, your dividend warrant will not be issued/dispatched to you. In order to comply with this
regulatory requirements, you are requested to kindly send photocopy of your CNIC to your Participant/Investor Account Services or in case of
Physical Shareholding, immediately to Company's Share Registrar.

4. Members are advised to promptly notify change in their postal address, if any, to the Company's Share Registrar.

Pursuant to the provision of the Finance Act 2016 effective July 01, 2016, the rate of deduction of income tax from dividend payments under
Section 150 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 have been revised as follows:

1) Rate of tax deduction for filer @ 12.50% 2) Rateoftax deduction for non-filers @ 20.00%

To enable the Company to make tax deduction on the amount of cash dividend @ 12.5% instead of 20.00% shareholders whose names are not
entered into the Active Taxpayers List (ATL) provided on the website of the FBR, despite the fact that they are filers, are advised to make sure
that their names are entered in ATL, otherwise tax on their cash dividend will be deducted @ 20.00% instead of 12.5%.
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10.

1.

12.

13.

Further, according to clarification received from Federal Board of Revenue (FBR), withholding tax will be determined separately on 'Filer/Non-
Filer' status of Principal Shareholder as well as Joint-holder(s) based on their shareholding proportions, in case of joint accounts. In this regard
all shareholders who hold shares jointly are requested to provide shareholding proportions of Principal shareholder and Join-holder(s) in
respect of shares held by them to our Share Registrar, in writing as follows:

Principal Shareholder Joint Shareholder
Company Folio/CDS Total Name and Shareholding Proportion Name and Shareholding Proportion
Name Account # Shares CNIC # (No. of Shares) CNIC # (No. of Shares)

The required information must reach our Share Registrar within 10 days of this notice, otherwise it will be assumed that the shares are equally
held by Principal shareholder and Joint-Holder(s).

AMember holding Physical Shares must bring his/her original Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC) and should mention his/her CNIC
and Folio No. and sign on the Attendance Sheet while personally attending this Meeting. Also Member having deposited his/her shares into
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited must bring his/her Participant's ID No. and Account/Sub-account No. along-with original
CNIC and mention his/her CNIC and CDC Account No. and sign on the Attendance Sheet while personally attending this Meeting.
Representatives of corporate Members should bring the usual documents required for such purpose as prescribed by the SECP.

The Company's Shareholders who are holding its Share in Physical Form are hereby informed and notified in their own interest who have not
yet provided copy of their valid Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC) mentioning their Folio Numbers are hereby reminded again
through this Notice to send urgently valid copy of their CNIC as mentioned above to the Company or its Share Registrar M/s Hameed Majeed
Associates (Pvt) Limited, Karachi Chambers, Hasrat Mohani Road, Karachi (Phone No. 021-32424826) in order to comply with the mandatory
requirements of Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (the Commission) issued vide SRO 83(1)/2012 dated July 05, 2012 and
SRO 19(1) of 2014 dated January 10,2014.

A List of such Shareholders along with their Folio numbers, Names, Address and No. of the Company's shares held in Physical Form is
available on the Company's Website www.sangharsugarmills.com for reference who have not yet submitted the valid copy of their CNIC to the
Company.

It is further informed that the Members of the Company were previously requested/reminded through Notices of Annual and Extra Ordinary
General Meetings held in previous years which were appeared in their respective Annual Reports of the Company as well as published in the
news papers Business Recorder and Khabrain of Karachi and Lahore on several dates. They are once again reminded that in case of non-
receipt of the copy of their valid CNIC along-with Folio No., the Company would be unable to comply with the mandatory requirement of the
Commission as mentioned above.

Members are advised to promptly notify change in their postal address, if any, to the Company's Share Registrar. Members having shares in
CDC accounts are required to have their address updated with respective participants.

CDC Account Holders will further have to follow the under mentioned guideline as laid down in circular dated January 26, 2000 issued by
SECP.

With reference to S.R.0. 787(1)/2014 dated September 08, 2014 issued by SECP, shareholders have option to receive Annual Audited
Financial Statements and Notice of General Meeting through email. Shareholders of the Company are requested to give their consent to the
Company's Registered Office to update the record if they wish to receive Annual Audited Financial Statements and Notice of Annual General
Meeting through email. However, if shareholder in addition, requested hard copy of Audited Financial Statements the same shall be provided
free of cost within Seven (7) days of receipt of such request.

In compliance with SECP notification No. 634(1)/2014 dated July 10, 2014, the audited financial statements and reports of the Company for the
year ended September 30, 2016 are being placed on the Company's website: www.sangharsugarmills.com for the information and review of
shareholders.

Members can also avail video conference facility. In this regard, please fill the following form and submit to registered address of the Company
10 days before holding of the Annual General Meeting.

If the Company receives consent from members in aggregate 10% or more shareholding residing at a geographical location, to participate in
the meeting through video conference at least 10 days prior to date of meeting, the Company will arrange video conference facility in that city
subject to availability of such facility in that city.

The Company will intimate Members regarding venue of video conference facility at least 5 days before the date of the Annual General Meeting
along with complete information necessary to enable them to access such facility.

I/We, of , being @ member of Sanghar Sugar Mills
Limited, holder of (number of shares) ordinary share(s) as per Registered Folio/CDC Account No.
hereby opt for video conference facility at .

Signature of Member(s)
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Directors' Report

The Directors of your Company are pleased to present Thirty First Annual Report with the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for
the year ended September 30,2016.

ABOUT THE INDUSTRY:
Industry Overview

Pakistan's Economy, during the Fiscal Year (FY) 2015-16, witnessed the highest Gross Domestic Product (GDP) Growth in the last eight
years. The GDP during FY 2015-16 was 4.7% as compared to 4.0% in the year 2014-15 but this is less than the growth target for the FY
2015-16, whichwas 5.5%.

In fact, the positive impact of an improvement in growth-enabling factors, were partially offset by dismal performance of the agricultural
sector during the year. Like FY 2014-15, the overall agricultural sector remained under stress in FY 2015-16, due to depressed commodity
prices and unfavorable weather conditions all over the Pakistan. The agriculture sector experienced a decline during FY 2015-16 despite a
better growth performance of sugarcane crops and one other crop compared to the previous year.

The Government support on output prices largely protected sugarcane growers from the impact of subdued commodity prices in the
international market. The provincial governments of Sindh and Punjab announced indicative sugarcane price atRs. 172 and Rs. 180 per 40
kg respectively, which led the domestic market price of sugar higher than the average in the global market.

Policy challenge pertained to gradual build-up of sugar stocks over the years. Specifically, the attractive support prices for sugarcane crop
increased their production to levels that exceeded even their domestic consumption. Although the government offered high rebate on the
export of surplus stocks, this was not sufficient to boost exports due to wide margin between domestic and international prices.

The sugarcane crop, despite missing the target of 68 million tons for the year, still posted a respectable growth of 4.2% to reach 65.5 million
tons. Encouragingly, this growth stemmed from better productivity, as the area under sugarcane cultivation was reduced slightly. More
importantly, market price of sugarcane crop largely remained in favour of growers, which shored up their margins as well.

The decline in sugar production, despite better sugarcane crop in FY 2015-16, can be attributed mainly to a lower recovery in sugar content
compared to the last year. Specifically, mills could not offload their large carryover stock in the market in the expectation that the domestic
prices will raise more. The export of sugar was not viable due to depressed prices in the international market.

The government in the federal budget 2016-17 changed the indirect tax mode from sales tax in federal excise mode to sales tax and
thereafter fixed the value of sugar at Rs. 56 per kg, which now stands revised at Rs. 60 per kg for the purpose of levying sales tax. This tax is
payable at the rate of 8% for registered buyers and 10% for the unregistered buyers.

ABOUTYOUR COMPANY:
Operating Results

A brief summary of operating results of the Company for the year ended September 30, 2016 along with the comparatives for the
corresponding year is given below:

2015-2016 2014-2015
Season started on 05-11-2015 15-11-2014
Season completed on 29-02-2016 31-03-2015
Duration of crushing Days 117 137
Sugarcane crushed M-Tons 563,617 630,317
Sugar Produced M-Tons 57,387.5 64,271
Sucrose recovery % 10.20 10.19

Review of Operation

The crushing rate was higher by 217 Metric Tons per day and become 4,817 Metric Tons per day as compared with an average of 4,600
Metric Tons per day of the previous season.
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As mentioned above, the Company operated for a shorter period of time due to lesser availability of sugarcane as compared to last year;
However the Sucrose recovery is higher by 0.01% which slightly offsetting the effect of decrease in crushing to certain extent.

The Sindh Government had notified the price of sugarcane at Rs. 172 per maund for the season 2015-16, lower yields of sugarcane crop has
created a shortage of sugarcane for crushing in Sindh, which led to price competition amongst the sugar mills. This resulted in increase in
cost of sugarcane and pushed up the cost of production.

Financial Results

The key financial figures of the Company for the year ended September 30, 2016 along with the comparatives for the corresponding year are
summarized as under:

2016 2015
(Rupees in '000)
Profit before taxation 11,060 89,783
Taxation (2,893) 32,383
Profit after taxation W W
Earnings per share-basic and diluted (Rupees) 1.17 4.80

Review of Financial Results

During the year under review, production is decreased by almost 10.7% and sales quantity is also decreased by 6.1% as compared with last
year, the net sugar sales revenue is decreased only by 1.27%, showing an increase in average selling price.

On the other hand cost of production increased due to increase in the cost of sugar cane, low production/sale of molasses and Bagasse,
even the sale of Electricity could not give much input to the cost of production.

The Profit before taxation is at decline from the previous period, the contributing factors as reported earlier are high cost of sugarcane and
provision of Rs. 18,713 thousand in respect of Inland Freight Subsidy receivable from Trade Development Authority of Pakistan.

Statement on Corporate and Financial Reporting Framework
In compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance, the Board of Directors hereby confirms that:

i.  The Financial Statements for the year ended September 30, 2016, prepared by the Management, present fairly its state of affairs, the
results of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity.

ii.  Properbooks ofaccounts of the Company have been maintained.

iii. ~ Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of financial statements and accounting estimates are
based on reasonable and prudent judgment.

iv.  International Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in preparation of Financial Statements and
there is no departure there from

v.  Thesystem ofiinternal controlis sound in design and has been effectively implemented and monitored.
vi.  There are no significant doubts upon the Company's ability to continue as going concern.

vii.  There has been no material departure from the best practices of the Corporate Governance as detailed in the Listing Regulations of the
Pakistan Stock Exchange.

viii. The Key Operating and Financial Data for last ten years in summarized form are annexed.

ix.  There are no statutory over dues otherwise than those disclosed in the financial statements and statutory payments due on account of
taxes duties, levies and charges are being made in the normal course of business.

X.  Anunfunded gratuity scheme is in operation for all permanent eligible employees. Provision are made annually to cover the obligation
on the basis of actuarial valuation, related details of which are mentioned in the Notes to the Financial Statements.

xi.  The Pattern of Shareholding is annexed.

xii. ~Tothe best of our knowledge, the Directors, Executives and their spouses and their minor children have not undertaken any trading of
Company's shares during the year.

xiii. AStatementof Compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance for the year is annexed with the Report.
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Attendance of Board of Directors in Board Meeting

Five Board meetings were held during the year. Leave of absence was granted to the Director unable to attend the meeting. Attendance by
each Director was as mentioned below:

Name of Directors Status No. of meeting attended
1) Mr.Ghulam Dastagir Rajar Chairman 4
2) HajiKhudaBuxRajar Chief Executive 5
3)  Mr.MohammadAslam Director 5
4)  Mr.RahimBux Director 5
5)  Mr. Ghulam Hyder Director 5
6) Mr.Qazi Shamsuddin Director 3
7)  Mr. ShahidAziz Director (N.I.T) 5

Attendance of Members in Meeting of Audit Committee
Five meetings of Audit Committee were held during the year. Attendance by each Member was as mentioned below:

Name of Directors Status No. of Meetings Attended
1) Mr.RahimBux Chairman 5
2)  Mr. ShahidAziz Member 5
3)  Mr.MohammadAslam Member 5

Attendance of Members in Meeting of Human Resource & Remuneration (H. R. & R.) Committee
Two meetings of H. R. & R. Committee were held during the year. Attendance by each Member was as mentioned below:

Name of Directors Status No. of Meetings Attended
1) Mr.Rahim Bux Chairman 2
2)  Mr.MuhammadAslam Member 2
3)  Mr.ShahidAziz Member 2

Attendance of Members in Meeting of Information Technology Committee
Two meetings of Information Technology Committee were held during the year. Attendance by each Member was as mentioned below:

Name of Members Status No. of Meetings Attended
1) Mr.Ghulam Hyder Chairman 2
2)  SyedRehanAhmad Hashmi Member 2
3)  Mr.MuhammadAhmed Member 2

Board Evaluation

Complying with the Code of Corporate Governance, the Board approved Self-Evaluation mechanism for evaluation of performance of the
Board, its directors and committees through discussion and questions focusing on the Board's scope, objectives, functions, responsibilities,
the Company's performance and monitoring. The Board has evaluated all the factors based on the inputs of the Directors made in the Board
Meeting.

Threshold for determining Executive

Pursuant to the requirement of Clause xvi (i) of the Code of Corporate Governance, the Board has revised and set out a Threshold for
determining an 'Executive' in respect of trading of Company's shares. The person whose annual basic salary exceeds Rupees 2.1 million
during the year commencing from October 01, 2015 upto the next period is treated as executive..

Related Party Transactions

Related party transactions were placed before the Board Audit Committee and were approved by the Board. These transactions were in-line
with the requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and the Companies Ordinance, 1984. The Company maintains
athorough and complete record of all such transactions.

Materiality Approach

Determining materiality levels is subjective and varied between organizations. Authorizations for transactions and delegation of powers
have been define clearly and carried out through formalized process in the Company. The Company has approved materiality policy, which
is reviewed annually to check its relevance.
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Human Resource Management & Succession Planning

The Company is committed to build the better organizational culture that is shaped by empowered employees who demonstrate a deep
belief in the Company's Vision and Values. H.R. Management Policy is integral part of the Company's business strategy. The Company
fosters leadership, individual accountability and team work. The Company believes in pro-active approach towards Succession Planning.
The Company recruits employees, develops their knowledge, skills, abilities and prepares them for advancement and promotion into more
challenging roles. Succession Planning ensures that employees are constantly developed to fill each needed role. The Company looks for
people who exemplify continuous improvement whenitis spotting Successors for future.

Conflict of Interest

The management of Company has the policy for actual and perceived conflicts of interest and measures are adopted to avoid, identify the
existence and to disclose the existence of conflict of interest. The primary goal of Company is to manage conflicts of interest to ensure that
decisions are made and are seen to be made on proper grounds, for legitimate reasons and without bias. The Company has set the
procedures to manage and monitor the conflict of interest.

Sustainability & Corporate Social Responsibility

Sanghar Sugar Mills Limited (the Company) acknowledges its social and ethical responsibility to carry outits business in order to keep it safe
and protect it for the generations to come. Sustainability Policy is considered to be essential for continuing of the business at Sanghar Sugar
Mills Limited. The Company considers itself accountable to its stakeholders and informs them about the initiative and measures taken to
ensure sustainability and has identified the following dimensions of performing social responsibilities which contributing to economy,
environment, health, education and society.

i.  To support the sugarcane growers of the area and provide better quality seeds and fertilizers to achieve improvement in quality of
sugarcane and enhance its quantity and productivity in order to have regular, constant and better supply in future the major basic raw
material for sugar mills.

ii. To alleviate illiteracy in the rural areas of the Country, the Company has launched education program and is providing education
facilities at the premises adjacent to the Mills' Employees' Colony by the well experienced and trained staff on concessional basis to
the children of the factory employees and persons living nearby in rural areas.

iii. ~ Tofollow consciously the needs of the Society concerning health, safety and environment for achieving the objective. The Company is
responsive to make efforts to minimize the accidental risks, have necessary medical facilities and continuously shrine to improve
greenery and maintain clean and safe environment around the Mills, better housekeeping, safeguarding the health of employees and
application of the principles of safety in its operations, the consumers and public at large by following the rules and regulations in this
regard.

iv. ~ The Company's efforts have primarily on improving the social conditions of the Communities and employees related to the Company
by establishing fair working conditions, ensuring occupational safety, setting social standard, establishing minimum wages, zero
tolerance on child labour and forced labour efc.

v.  The Company is continuously striving toimprove greenery, maintaining cleanenvironment around the mills and better house-keeping.
vi.  Toencourage employment of workforce living in the rural areas in order to yield significant gain and uplift their living standard.

vii. The Company treats all employees fairly and compensates them according to the industry practice. The Company provides the
benefits such as perquisites, annual leaves, pick and drop, facility of mess, safe and healthy working conditions etc along-with group
insurance, making payments to Employees Old Age Benefits Institution, Employees Welfare Fund, Worker's Profit Participation
Funds.

viii. The Company is committed to maintaining the principles of integrity and trust with respect to privacy of the employees of the Company.

ix.  The Company made donations amounting to Rs. 1,200 thousand during the year as compared to Rs. 1,156 thousand during the last
year . These donations do not include any amount paid to any person or organization in which any director or their spouse had any
interest.

Contribution to National Exchequer

The Company is contributing to the National growth by sharing its revenue with the nation in the form of taxes, rates and duties. The
Company is also contributing the Country to improve foreign reserves by earning foreign currency through exports of sugar as and when
allowed. The Company contributed to National Exchequer in the form income taxes, sales tax and other levies amounting to Rs. 222,324
thousand during the year as compared to Rs. 255,818 thousand during the last year.
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Subsequent Event After the Year End
Donation of Land:

The Company reviews its Corporate Social Responsibility by taking various measures to ensure its contribution to health and making efforts
to minimize the accidental risks, have necessary medical facilities to safeguard the health of its employees and the society. In order to
improve and extend Health Facilities for its employees, besides rural people living in the vicinity of Sanghar Sugar Mills in Sanghar, the
Company has deliberated Ministry of Overseas Pakistanis & Human Resources Development, Workers Welfare Fund, Government of
Pakistan, Islamabad, which has expressed its willingness to construct Fifty Beds Hospital by Workers Welfare Fund on the premises of
Sanghar Sugar Mills in Sanghar, if the Company is ready to donate (free of cost and any charge or mortgage) Five Acres Land and transfer
its Title to Workers Welfare Fund, Ministry of Overseas Pakistanis & Human Resource Development, Government of Pakistan.

On November 23, 2016, the shareholders of the Company approved the Board of Directors proposal in the Extra Ordinary General Meeting
that the donation (free of cost and any charge or mortgage) and Transfer 05 Acres Land valuing Rs. 2.5 million, out of 320 Acres Land of the
Company in Sanghar. The details are givenin note 44.1 of the financial statements

In order to implement the Agreements with the Ministry of Overseas Pakistanis & Human Resource Development, Workers Welfare Fund,
Government of Pakistan, Islamabad, for the purpose of construction of Fifty Beds Hospital on the above said Land in the vicinity of Sanghar
Sugar Mills located in Sanghar, the formalities of transfer of Land and other documentation is in process ill date.

Appointment of Company Secretary:

After the year end, Company Secretary Mr. Abdul Ghafoor Ateeq, resigned, which was accepted with effect from 1st day of December 2016
as requested by him. Thereafter, Mr. Muhammad Mubeen Alam appointed as Company Secretary in place of Mr. Abdul Ghafoor Ateeq, with
effect from December 06, 2016 as approved by the Board of Directors through resolution by circulation, which was subsequently ratified by
the Board of Directors.

Future Prospects

Crushing season 2016-17 is started on scheduled time. The expected increase in availability of sugarcane and in turn production of sugar
may results in surplus stock at the end of season. The approval of export by Economic Coordination Committee may offset the impact of
surplus sugar stock in the country.

As reported earlier, the capacity expansion work is in progress and your management is working hard to make the trial run during the current
season.

Dividend

The Board of Directors of the Company in its meeting held on January 07, 2017 has decided to recommend to pay cash dividend at Paisa
Sixty only (Rs. 0.60) per sharei.e.6% forthe yearended September 30,2016 (2015: Cash Dividend atRs. 2/- per sharei.e. 20%).

Appropriation

Final Dividend for the year ended September 30, 2015 @ Rs. 2/- per share, declared by Board of Directors and subsequently approved
during the year in Annual General Meeting. An amount of Rs. 23,892 thousand was appropriated during the year against the dividend paid to
shareholders of the Company. The appropriation is disclosed in the statement of Changes in Equity.

Auditors

The present Auditors M/s. Kerston Hyder Bhimji & Co. Chartered Accountants retire at the conclusion of forthcoming Annual General
Meeting and being eligible, have offered themselves for re-appointment. As suggested by the Audit Committee in terms of the Code of
Corporate Governance, the Board of Directors has recommended their appointment as Auditors of the Company for the year ending
September 30, 2017.

Acknowledgement

Your Directors place on record their appreciation for devotion of duty, loyalty and hard work of the executives, officers, staff members and
workers for smooth running of the Company's affair and hope that they will continue for enhancement of productivity with great zeal and spirit
underthe blessings of Aimighty Allah.

The Directors would like to thank all the government functionaries, banking and non-banking financial institutions, suppliers and
shareholders for their continued support and cooperation for the betterment and prosperity of the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Karachi: January 07, 2017 Chief Executive
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OPERATIONAL DATA
Duration of Season (
Cane crushed (
Sucrose Recovery (%
Sugar Made (
Molasses (
All figures in Rs in '000
PROFIT & LOSS RESULTS
Turnover - Net

Gross profit

Operating profit

Profit/(loss) before taxation
Profit/(loss) after taxation
ASSETS EMPLOYED
Operating Assets

Long Term Deposits
Deferred Cost

Current Assets

Total Assets Employed
FINANCED BY
Shareholder's equity
Surplus on Revaluation
Long Term Liabilities
Deferred Liabilities

Current Liabilities

Total Fund Invested

Days)

Tons)

Tons)

Tons)

Key Operating &

Financial Highlights

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
117 137 151 121 109 17 14 132 182 146
563,617 630,317 738,209 542,289 483,352 491205 484452 597,111 853,592 526,439
10.20 10.19 9.81 9.77 9.62 9.57 9.60 9.58 9.50 8.68
57,387.5 64,271 72,530 52,823 46,516 47,008 46,547 57,308 87,026 45,602
27,040 34299 39,260 27,460 26,503 24,004 23,785 30,279 49,360 26,200
2,832,657 2,869,164 3,196,951 2,771,454 3,005261 1,498,297 2,679,922 1,679,489 1,861,248 1,065,461
151,582 257,087 213,749 148,572 195512 245956 377,383 225504 233,621 71,575
59,919 170,905 135,446 94,580 95,814 159,342 308,572 162,815 171,328 28,489
11,060 89,783 36,091 14,271 (424) 64,345 213,047 115257 134,232 (12,373)
13,953 57,400 8,732 6,901 (6,554) 37,759 134,431 66,912 98,603 (19,755)
1,465,348 1,167,508 1,146,845 729,685 747,116 754,005 477,508 494,031 516,797 524,078
15,467 10,966 9,478 45,300 36,369 36,396 2,223 2,223 2,223 2,223
28,885 33,373 — — — — — — — —
915,207 688,656 670,133 461,593 935,108 1,471,518 240,366 277,084 119,007 125,784
2,424,907 1,900,503 1,826,456 1,236,578 1,718,593 2,261,919 720,097 773,338 638,027 652,085
467,266 451,265 370,861 354,765 329931 327,682 305462 179,574 106,967 2,757
396,171 409,370 427,287 146,801 160,241 169,043 46,213 49,624 55,319 103,695
262,532 103,640 23174 75,242 64,908 85,089 23,159 75812 210,646 250,621
295,067 325349 320,838 210011 217,741 217,014 145489 150,054 145,697 128,348
1,003,871 610,879 684,296 449,759 945,772 1,463,091 199,774 318274 119,398 166,664
2,424,907 1,900,503 1,826,456 1,236,578 1,718,593 2,261,919 720,097 773,338 638,027 652,085
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Graphical Presentation
of Financial Highlights

Total Assets Employed
2016

B Operating Assets

Long Term Deposit

Deferred Cost

M Current Assets

Total Fund Invested - 2016

M Shareholders’ Equity

W Surplus Revaluation
Long Term Liabilities
Deferred Liabilities

I Current Liabilities

Total Assets Employed
2015

B Operating Assets

Long Term Deposit

Deferred Cost

W Current Assets

Total Fund Invested - 2015

W Shareholders’ Equity

W Surplus Revaluation
Long Term Liabilities
Deferred Liabilities

W Current Liabilities
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Balance Sheet
Total Non-Current Assets
Total Current Assets

Total Assets

Total Equity & Surplus on revaluation

Total Non-Current Liabilities
Total Current Liabilities
Total Equity & Liabilities
Profit & Loss Account
Sales

Cost of sales

Gross Profit

Profit on trading activity
Distribution cost
Administrative expenses
Other operating expenses
Other income

Operating Profit

Finance cost

Profit / (loss) before taxation
Taxation

Profit / (loss) after taxation

Horizontal Analysis of

Financial Statements

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
................................. Rupees in 000 Variance in % ....cererneneensesninnne
1,509,700 1,211,847 1,156,323 774,985 783,485 24.58 4.80 49.21 (1.08) (0.87)
915,207 688,656 670,133 461,593 935,108 32.90 2.76 4518 (50.64)  (36.45)
2,424,907 1,900,503 1,826,456 1,236,578 1,718,593 27.59 4.05 47.70 (28.05)  (24.02)
863,437 860,635 798,148 501,566 490,172 0.33 7.83 59.13 2.32 (1.32)
557,599 428,989 344,012 285,253 282,649 29.98 24.70 20.60 0.92 (6.44)
1,003,871 610,879 684,296 449,759 945,772 64.33  (10.73) 52.15 (52.45)  (35.36)
2,424,907 1,900,503 1,826,456 1,236,578 1,718,593 27.59 4.05 47.70 (28.05)  (24.02)
2,832,657 2,869,164 3,196,951 2,771,454 3,005,261 (1.27)  (10.25) 15.35 (7.78)  100.58
(2,681,075) (2,612,077)(2,983,202)  (2,622,882)(2,809,749) 2.64 (12.44) 13.74 (6.65)  124.36
151,582 257,087 213,749 148,572 195512 = (41.04) 20.28 43.87 (24.01)  (20.51)
2,179 — (577) — —  100.00 (100.00) 100.00 — —
(522) (769)  (5,326) (6,934)  (9,578) = (32.12) (85.56)  (23.19) (27.60)  332.81
(77,999)  (75,544) (63,949) (61,481)  (90,120) 3.25 18.13 4.01 (31.78) 6.78
(22,168) (9,950)  (8,834) (20,378)  (5,984) = 122.79 1263  (56.65) 240.54  (22.68)
6,847 81 383 34,801 3,698 8,353.09 (78.85)  (98.90) 841.08  (50.18)
59,919 170,905 135,446 94,580 93,528 = (64.94) 26.18 43.21 112 (41.19)
(48,859)  (81,122) (99,355) (80,309) (93,952) = (39.77) (18.35) 23.72 (14.52) (0.77)
11,060 89,783 36,091 14,271 (424) = (87.68)  148.77 152.90 (3,465.80) (100.66)
2,893  (32,383) (27,359) (7,370)  (6,130)  (108.93) 18.36 271.22 20.23  (76.94)
13,953 57,400 8,732 6,901  (6,554) = (75.69) 557.35 26.53  (205.29) (117.36)
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Vertical Analysis of
Financial Statements

2016 2016 2015 2015 2014 2014 2013 2013 2012 2012
Rupees in 000 % Rupees in 000 %  Rupeesin000 % Rupeesin000 % Rupeesin000 %
Balance Sheet
Total Non-Current Assets 1,509,700 62.26 1,211,847 63.76 1,156,323 63.31 774,985 62.67 783,485 45.59
Total Current Assets 915,207 37.74 688,656 36.24 670,133 36.69 461,593 37.33 935,108 54.41
Total Assets 2,424,907 100.00 1,900,503 100.00 1,826,456  100.00 1,236,578 100.00 1,718,593  100.00

Total Equity & Surplus on revaluation 863,437 35.61 860,635 4528 798,148 43.70 501,566 40.56 490,172 28.52

Total Non-Current Liabilities 557,599 22.99 428,989 22.57 344,012 18.83 285,253 23.07 282,649 16.45
Total Current Liabilities 1,003,871 41.40 610,879 3214 684296 3747 449,759 36.37 945,772 55.03
Total Equity & Liabilities 2,424,907 100.00 1,900,503 100.00 1,826,456  100.00 1,236,578 100.00 1,718,593  100.00

Profit & Loss Account

Sales 2,832,657 100.00 2,869,164  100.00 3,196,951 100.00 2,771,454  100.00 3,005261  100.00
Cost of sales (2,681,075) | (94.65) (2,612,077)  (91.04)(2,983,202) (93.31) (2,622,882)  (94.64) (2,809,749)  (93.49)
Gross Profit 151,582 5.35 257,087 8.96 213,749 6.69 148572 536 195512 6.51
Profit on trading activity 2,179 0.08 — — (577)  (0.02) — — — —
Distribution cost (522) (0.02) (769)  (0.03) (5326) (0.17)  (6,934)  (0.25)  (9,578)  (0.32)
Administrative expenses (77,999) (275)  (75544)  (263) (63949)  (200) (61481)  (222) (90,120)  (3.00)
Other operating expenses (22,168) (0.78) (9950)  (0.35) (8,834)  (0.28) (20,378)  (0.74)  (5984)  (0.20)
Other income 6,847 0.24 81 0.00 383 0.01 34,801 1.26 3,698 0.12
Operating Profit 59,919 212 170,905 596 135446 424 94,580 3.41 93,528 3N
Finance cost (48,859) (1.72) (81,122) (2.83) (99,355)  (3.11)  (80,309) (290)  (93,952)  (3.13)
Profit / (loss) before taxation 11,060 0.39 89,783 313 36,001 1.13 14,271 0.51 (424) (0.01)
Taxation 2,893 040  (32,383)  (1.13) (27,359) (0.86)  (7,370)  (0.27)  (6,130)  (0.20)
Profit / (loss) after taxation 13,953 0.49 57,400 2.00 8,732 0.27 6,901 0.25 (6,554) (0.22)
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Stakeholders Information

Stock Exchange Listing

Sanghar Sugar Mills Limited is a listed Company and its shares are traded on Pakistan Stock Exchange
Limited. The Company’s shares are quoted in leading newspapers under Sugar Sector.

Communication with Users of Financial Statements

Communication with users of financial statements is given high priority. Annual, half yearly and quarterly
reports are distributed to the shareholders and provided to other users within the time specified in the
Companies Ordinance, 1984. There is also an opportunity for individual shareholder to participate at the
Annual General Meetings to ensure high level of accountability.

Shareholders Information

Enquiries concerning verification of transfer deeds, transfer of share certificates, change of address etc.,
should be directed to the Shares Registrar, Hameed Majeed Associates (Pvt) Ltd. Karachi Chambers,
Hasrat Mohani Road, Karachi Phone No: 021- 32424826, Fax No: 021-32424835.

Public Information

Financial analysts, stock brokers, interested investors and financial media desiring information about
Sanghar Sugar Mills Limited and its products should contact the Executive Director/Chief Financial Officer at
Registered Office, Karachi Phone: 021-35371441 to 43 (03 lines), Fax: 021-35371444.

FINANCIAL RATIOS

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
Profitability Ratios
Gross Profit Ratio (%) 5.35 8.96 6.69 5.36 6.51 16.42 14.08 13.43 12.55 6.72
Net Profit to Sales (%) 0.49 2.00 0.27 0.25 (0.22) 2.52 5.02 6.86 7.21 (1.16)
Return on Capital
Employed (%) 12.82 37.87 36.52 36.52 42.17 47.43 85.86 77.37 41.48 19.49
Turnover Ratios
Inventory Turnover Ratio 4.59 5.21 8.01 6.19 3.08 1.96 17.51 11.72 26.36 18.41

Fixed Assets Turnover Ratio 193.37 24593 278.88 383.94 403.72 200.02 561.23 339.96 360.15 203.30

Investor Information

Price Earning Ratio 36.39 5.31 34.89 39.47 (44.91) 3.39 1.23 2.81 2.96 (5.14)
Market Value per Share 42.50 41.74 25.50 22.89 24.70 10.71 13.84 15.75 24.45 8.50
Book Value per Share 39.11 37.78 31.04 29.70 27.62 27.43 25.57 15.03 8.95 0.23
Earning per Share 1.17 4.80 0.73 0.58 (0.55) 3.16 11.25 5.60 8.25 (1.65)

Liquidity Ratios

Current Ratio 0.91 1.13 0.98 1.03 0.99 1.01 1.203 0.871 0.997 0.75
Capital Structure Ratios

Debt Equity Ratio 1.11 0.53 0.69 1.05 2.06 3.12 1.05 1.97 2.30 1.60
Interest Cover Ratio 1.23 211 1.36 1.18 1.00 1.68 4.11 4.14 6.30 0.67
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Statement of Value Addition and its Distribution

............. 2016 ............... wermeeeneens 2015 L
Value Addition: (Rs. ‘000) % (Rs. ‘000) %
Turnover Gross 3,366,123 99.797 3,416,685 99.998
Other Income 6,847 0.203 81 0.002
3,372,970 100.000 3,416,766  100.000
Cane Procurement and related expenses | 2,678,277 94.357 2,702,619 96.918
Other Expenses 160,187 5.643 85,956 3.082
2,838,464 100.000 2,788,575 100.000
534,506 15.847 628,191 18.386
Value Distribution:
Distributed as follows
To Employees
— Remuneration 171,898 32.160 162,152 25.474
— Worker's profit participation fund 594 0.111 4,822 0.758
172,492 166,974
To Government
— Federal Excise Duty / Sales Tax /
Further Tax 227,103 42.488 229,532 36.060
— Income Tax 19,102 3.574 21,638 3.399
— Deferred Tax (33,040) (6.181) (1,655) (0.260)
— Cess & Fees 9,159 1.714 6,303 0.990
222,324 255,818
To Providers of Capital
— Finance Cost 48,859 9.141 81,122 12.744
48,859 81,122
To Corporate Social Responsibility
— Charity & Donations 1,200 0.225 1,156 0.182
1,200 1,156
Retained in the Business
— Depreciation & Amortization 75,678 14.159 74,064 11.636
— Profit for the Year 13,953 2.610 57,400 9.018
89,631 131,464
534,506 100.000 636,534 100.000
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Graphical Presentation of
Value Distribution

Value Distribution - 2016

| To Employees
To Government
To Providers of Capital

To Corporate Social Responsibility

| | Retained in the Business

Value Distribution - 2015

| | To Employees

To Government

To Providers of Capital
To Corporate Social Responsibility

| | Retained in the Business
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Review Report to the Members
on Statement of Compliance with the
Code of Corporate Governance

We have reviewed the Statement of Compliance with the best practices contained in the Code of Corporate Governance (“the
code”) prepared by the Board of Directors of SANGHAR SUGAR MILLS LIMITED (“the Company”) for the year ended September
30, 2016 to comply with the requirement of Rule 5.19 of the Rule Book of the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited, where the
Companyis listed.

The responsibility for compliance with the Code is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. Our responsibility is to review, to
the extent where such compliance can be objectively verified, whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the
Company's compliance with the provisions of the Code and report if it does not and to highlight any non-compliance with the
requirement of the Code. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the Company's personnel and review of various documents
prepared by the Company to comply with the Code.

As part of our audit of financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the accounting and internal control
systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board of
Directors' statement on internal control covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal
controls, the Company's corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Code requires the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of the Audit Committee, place
before the Board for their review and approval, its related party transactions distinguishing between transactions carried out on
terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm's length transactions and transactions which are not executed at arm's length price
recording proper justification for using such alternate pricing mechanism. We are only required and have ensured compliance of
this requirement to the extent of the approval of related party transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the
Audit Committee. We have not carried out any procedures to determine whether the related party transactions were undertaken at
arm's length price or not.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of Compliance does not
appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all material respects, with the best practices contained in the Code as
applicable to the Company for the year ended September 30, 2016.

KRESTON HYDER BHIMJI & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Engagement Partner: Fahad Ali Shaikh

Karachi: January 07,2017
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Statement of Compliance with the Code of
Corporate Governance
Name of Company: SANGHAR SUGAR MILLS LIMITED
Year ended: September 30, 2016
This statement is being presented to comply with the Code of Corporate Governance (CCG) contained
in listing regulations of Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited for the purpose of establishing a framework of good

governance, whereby a listed company is managed in compliance with the best practices of corporate
governance.

The Company has applied the principles contained in the CCG in the following manner:

1. The Company encourages representation of independent, non-executive directors and directors
representing minority interests on its Board of Directors. At present the Board includes:

Category Name
Mr. Rahim Bux

Haji Khuda Bux Rajar
Mr. Ghulam Hyder

Mr. Ghulam Dastagir Rajar
Mr. Mohammad Aslam

Mr. Qazi Shamsuddin

Mr. Shahid Aziz

The Independent Director meets the criteria of independence under Clause 5.19.1(b) of the CCG.

(i) Independent Director

(i)  Executive Directors

(i) Non-Executive Directors

PN M2 =

2. The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven listed
companies, including this Company.

3. The directors of the Company are registered as taxpayers and none of them has defaulted in payment
of any loan to a banking company, a DFI or an NBFI. None of the directors of the Company is a
member of the stock exchange.

No casual vacancy occurred on the Board during the year.

The Company has prepared a “Code of Conduct & Ethics” and has ensured that appropriate steps
have been taken to disseminate it throughout the Company along with its supporting policies and
procedures.

6. The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant
policies of the Company. A complete record of particulars of significant policies along with the dates
on which they were approved or amended has been maintained.

7. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on material transactions,
including appointment and determination of remuneration and terms and conditions of employment
of the Chief Executive, other executive and non-executive directors, have been taken by the Board.

8. All the meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, the Board met at least once in
every quarter. Written notices of the Board meetings, along with agenda and working papers, were
circulated at least seven days before the meetings. The minutes of the meetings were appropriately
recorded and circulated.

9. The Board is well aware of their duties and responsibilities as outlined by corporate laws and listing
regulations. One Director of the Company-Haji Khuda Bux Rajar has the prescribed education and
experience required for exemption under clause 5.19.7 of PSX Rules accordingly he is exempted
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from attending director’s training program pursuant to the clause (xi) of the CCG. All other Directors
have already completed approved Directors’ Training Program as specified in the CCG.

10.  Nonew appointment of CFO, Company Secretary or the Head of Internal Audit has been made during
the year. The remuneration, terms and conditions of the employment of CFO, Company Secretary
and Head of Internal Audit and any changes thereto has been approved by the Board.

11.  The Directors’ Report for this year has been prepared in compliance with the requirements of the
CCG and fully describes the salient matters required to be disclosed.

12.  The Financial Statements of the Company were duly endorsed by CEO and CFO before approval of
the Board.

13.  The Directors, Chief Executive and Executives do not hold any interest in the shares of the Company
other than that disclosed in the Pattern of Shareholding.

14. The Company has complied with all the corporate and financial reporting requirements of the CCG.

15. The Board has formed the Audit Committee. It comprises three members all of whom are Non-
Executive Directors including an Independent Director, who is its Chairman.

16. The meetings of the Audit Committee were held at least once every quarter prior to the approval of
interim and final results of the Company and as required by the CCG. The terms of reference of the
Committee have been formed and advised to the Committee for compliance.

17.  The Board has formed a Human Resource & Remuneration Committee. It comprises three members
of whom two are Non-Executive Directors and one is Independent Director, who is its Chairman.

18. The Board has set up an effective internal audit function in the Company managed by experience
persons who are conversant with the policies and procedures of the Company and the industry’s best
practices. They are involved in the internal audit functions on a full time basis. The head of internal
audit department functionally reports to the Board’'s Audit Committee

19.  The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating
under the quality control review program of Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the ICAP),
that they or any of the partners of the firm, their spouses and minor children do not hold shares of the
Company and that the firm and all its partners are in compliance with International Federation of
Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the ICAP.

20. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other
services except in accordance with the listing regulations and the auditors have confirmed that they
have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard.

21.  The ‘closed period’, prior to the announcement of interim/final results, and business decisions,
which may materially affect the market price of Company’s securities, was determined and
intimated to directors, employees and stock exchange.

22.  Material/price sensitive information has been disseminated among all market participants at once
through Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited.

23.  The Company has complied with the requirements relating to maintenance of register of persons
having access to inside information by designated senior management officer in a timely manner and
maintained proper record including basis for inclusion or exclusion of names of persons from the said
list.

24.  We confirm that all other material principles enshrined in the CCG have been complied with.

Chairman Chief Executive

Karachi: January 07, 2017
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Auditors' Report to the Members

We have audited the annexed balance sheet of SANGHAR SUGAR MILLS LIMITED (“the Company”) as at September 30, 2016
and the related profitand loss account, statement of comprehensive income, cash flow statement and statement of changes in equity
together with the notes forming part thereof, for the year then ended and we state that we have obtained all the information and
explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purpose of our audit.

Itis the responsibility of the Company's management to establish and maintain a system of internal control, and prepare and present
the above said statements in conformity with the approved accounting standards and the requirements of the Companies Ordinance,
1984. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standards as applicable in Pakistan. These standards require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the above said statements are free of any material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on test basis evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the above said
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting policies and significant estimates made by management, as well as,
evaluating the overall presentation of the above said statements. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion and, after due verification, we report that:

a) inouropinion, proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Ordinance, 1984;
b) inouropinion:

i) the balance sheet and profit and loss account together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the
Companies Ordinance, 1984 and are in agreement with the books of account and are further in accordance with the
accounting policies consistently applied;

i) the expenditure incurred during the year was for the purpose of the Company's business; and

iii) the business conducted, investments made and the expenditure incurred during the year were in accordance with the
objects ofthe Company.

c) inouropinionand to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the balance sheet, profit and loss
account, statement of comprehensive income, cash flow statement and statement of changes in equity, together with the notes
forming part thereof conform with approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan, and give the information required
by the Companies Ordinance 1984, in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the
Company's affairs as at September 30, 2016 and of profit, total comprehensive income, its cash flows and changes in equity for
the year then ended; and

d) in our opinion, Zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980) was deducted by the
company and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under section 7 of that Ordinance.

KRESTON HYDER BHIMJI & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Engagement Partner: Fahad Ali Shaikh

Karachi: January 07,2017
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Balance Sheet

As at September 30, 2016

ASSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible asset

Long term deposits

Deferred cost

CURRENT ASSETS

Stores, spare parts and loose tools
Stock-in-trade

Trade debts

Loans and advances

Trade deposits & short term prepayments
Other receivables

Sales Tax refundable

Income tax refundable - net of provision
Cash and bank balances

TOTAL ASSETS

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Authorized capital

20,000,000 shares of Rs.10 each

Issued, subscribed and paid up capital
Unappropriated profit

Surplus on revaluation of property, plant & equipment
NON CURRENT LIABILITIES

Long term financing

Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease
Deferred liabilities

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables

Accrued finance cost

Short term borrowings

Current portion of long term financing

Current portion of liabilities against assets
subject to finance lease

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Notes

o~NO O

10
11
12
13
14

15

16

17

18
19
20

21
22
23
18

19

24

The annexed notes from 1 to 46 form an integral part of these financial Statements.

Chief Executive

2016 2015
(Rupees in '000)
1,464,904 1,166,639
444 869
15,467 10,966
28,885 33,373
1,509,700 1,211,847
49,675 42,326
606,067 560,944
— 11,635
104,960 24,603
14,740 1,012
12,171 26,609
3,606 —
733 11,778
123,255 9,749
915,207 688,656
2,424,907 1,900,503
200,000 200,000
119,460 119,460
347,806 331,805
467,266 451,265
396,171 409,370
182,414 66,000
80,118 37,640
295,067 325,349
557,599 428,989
289,415 242,365
20,302 13,756
644,680 317,304
22,000 22,000
27,474 15,454
1,003,871 610,879
2,424,907 1,900,503
Director
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Profit and Loss Account
For the year ended September 30, 2016

2016 2015
Notes (Rupees in ‘000)
Sales 25 2,832,657 2,869,164
Cost of sales 26 2,681,075 2,612,077
Gross Profit 151,582 257,087
Profit on trading activity 27 2,179 —
153,761 257,087
Distribution cost 28 522 769
Administrative expenses 29 77,999 75,544
Other operating expenses 30 22,168 9,950
100,689 86,263
Operating Profit 53,072 170,824
Other income 31 6,847 81
59,919 170,905
Finance cost 32 48,859 81,122
Profit before taxation 11,060 89,783
Taxation 33 (2,893) 32,383
Profit after taxation 13,953 57,400
Earnings per share - Basic and diluted (Rupees) 34 1.17 4.80

The annexed notes from 1 to 46 form an integral part of these financial Statements.

Chief Executive Director
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Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended September 30, 2016

2016 2015
Notes (Rupees in ‘000)

Profit after taxation 13,953 57,400
Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit & loss
Remeasurement gain on employees

retirement benefits plan 20.3.1 4,701 —
Impact of tax 20.1 (1,457) —
Total Other Comprehensive Income 3,244 —
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 17,197 57,400

The annexed notes from 1 to 46 form an integral part of these financial Statements.

Chief Executive Director
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Cash Flow Statement
For the year ended September 30, 2016

2016 2015
Notes (Rupees in ‘000)
Profit before taxation 11,060 89,783
Adjustment for non cash charges and other items:
Depreciation 51.2 65,625 65,455
Amortization 6 425 266
Amortization of deferred cost 8 9,628 8,343
Employees retirement benefits expense 20.3.3 11,796 10,370
Provision for slow moving items and obsolescence 9.1 286 1,271
Gain on sale of property, plant & equipment 31 (793) —
Impairment allowance against inland freight subsidy 141 18,713 —
Provision for market committee fee 20.2 5,636 6,303
Finance cost 32 48,859 81,122
160175 173,130
171,235 262,913
Changes in Working capital
(Increase) / Decrease in current assets
Stores, spare parts and loose tools (7,635) (1,472)
Stock - in - trade (45,123) (118,826)
Trade debts 11,635 (11,635)
Loans and advances (80,357) 42,466
Trade deposits & Short term prepayments (13,728) 63,162
Sales Tax refundable (3,606) —
Other receivables (4,275) (3,413)
(143,089) (29,718)
Increase in current liabilities
Trade and other payables 47,050 104,762
75,196 337,957
Employees retirement benefits paid during the year 20.3.1 (1,933) (5,420)
Finance cost paid during the year (42,313) (87,680)
Increase in long term deposits (4,501) (1,488)
Deferred cost incurred during the year 8 (5,140) (41,716)
Income tax paid during the year (19,102) (21,638)
(72,989) (157,942)
Net cash inflows from operating activities 2,207 180,015
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Additions to property, plant and equipment 518&5.2 (364,180) (85,747)
Addition in intangible assets — (638)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant & equipment 51.3 1,083 —
Net cash outflow from investing activities (363,097) (86,385)
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of long term financing 18 (22,000) —
Proceeds from long term financing 18 138,414 88,000
Dividend paid during the year (23,892) —
Finance lease obtained during the year 70,000 —
Proceeds from sale & lease back of property, plant & equipment — 30,000
Payments liabilities against asset subject to finance lease (15,502) (56,401)
Net cash inflows from financing activities 147,020 61,599
Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents (213,870) 155,229
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year (307,555) (462,784)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 35 (521,425) (307,555)
The annexed notes from 1 to 46 form an integral part of these financial Statements.
Chief Executive Director
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Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended September 30, 2016

Share Unappropriated
Particulars Capital profit Total
........................ (Rs in "000) ........ccocmmrrrenceen
Balance as at September 30, 2014 119,460 251,401 370,861
Total Comprehensive Income for the year — 57,400 57,400
Incremental depreciation charged on surplus on
revaluation of property, plant & equipment
- net of deferred tax — 23,004 23,004
Balance as at September 30, 2015 119,460 331,805 451,265
Balance as at October 01, 2015 119,460 331,805 451,265
Transactions with Owners
Final Dividend for the year ended
September 30, 2015 @ Rs.2 per share — (23,892) (23,892)
Total Comprehensive Income for the year — 17,197 17,197
Incremental depreciation charged on surplus on
revaluation of property, plant & equipment
- net of deferred tax — 22,696 22,696
Balance as at September 30, 2016 119,460 347,806 467,266

The annexed notes from 1 to 46 form an integral part of these financial Statements.

Chief Executive Director

44



Sanghar Sugar Mills Limited Annual Report 2016

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended September 30, 2016

1 COMPANY AND ITS OPERATIONS

The Company is a public limited Company incorporated in 1986 in Pakistan under the Companies
Ordinance, 1984. Its shares are quoted on Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. The Company is
principally engaged in the manufacture and sale of sugar and its by-products. The Company has also
installed transmission equipment to sell surplus electric power. The registered office of the Company
is situated at C-27, Plot No. F-24, Block - 9, Clifton, Karachi and its manufacturing facilities are located
in district Sanghar, Sindh.

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION
21 Statement of Compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the approved accounting
standards, as applicable in Pakistan. Approved accounting standards comprise of such International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(IASB) and Islamic Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Pakistan, as are notified under the Companies Ordinance, 1984 (the Ordinance), provisions and
directives issued under the Ordinance. In case requirements differ, the provisions or directives of the
Ordinance shall prevail.

2.2 Accounting Convention

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for,
employees retirement benefits that are based on actuarial valuation, items of property, plant and
equipment which are carried at revalued amounts and stock in trade when valued at net realizable
value.

2.3 RECENT ACCOUNTING DEVELOPMENTS

STANDARDS, AMENDMENTS TO PUBLISHED APPROVED ACCOUNTING STANDARD AND
INTERPRETATIONS

2.3.1 During the year, the following approved accounting standards, interpretations, amendments /
revisions to the following approved accounting standards became effective for the accounting
periods beginning from the dates specified below;

Effective dates as determined
by relevant IFRS

IFRS-10  Consolidated Financial Statements - Amendment 1-Jan-15
IFRS-11  Joint Agreement 1-Jan-15
IFRS-12  Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities - Amendment 1-Jan-15
IFRS-13  Fair Value Measurement 1-Jan-15

These Standards, interpretations and amendments are not expected to have significant impact on
Company's financial statements except certain additional disclosures, which are incorporated in
these financial statements, where required. In addition to above, certain new cycle of improvements
are applicable in current year, which are either considered not to be relevant or are not to have
significant impact to the company's financial statements and hence have not been specified.
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2.3.2 Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards
that are not yet effective in the current financial year

The following Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting
standards that are effective for accounting periods, beginning on or after the date mentioned against
each of them.

Effective dates as determined
by relevant IFRS

IAS-1 Presentation of Financial Statements-Amendment 1-Jan-16
IAS-7 Statement of Cash flows-Amendment 1-Jan-17
IAS-12 Income Taxes-Amendment 1-Jan-17
IAS-16 Property, Plant and Equipment - Amendment 1-Jan-16
IAS-27 Separate Financial Statements - Amendment 1-Jan-16
IAS-28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures 1-Jan-16
IAS-38 Intangible Assets - Amendment 1-Jan-16
IAS-41 Agriculture - Amendment 1-Jan-16
IFRS-2 Share based Payments - Amendment 1-Jan-18
IFRS-9 Financial Instruments: Classification and

Measurement - Replacement 1-Jan-18
IFRS-14  Regulatory Deferral Accounts 1-Jan-16
IFRS-15  Revenue from Contracts with Customers 1-Jan-18
IFRS-16 Leases 1-Jan-19

These standards, interpretations and the amendments are either not relevant to or are not expected
to have significant impact on the company's financial statements other than certain additional
disclosures, if applicable.

In addition to above, certain new cycle of improvements will apply prospectively for period beginning
on or after 01, October 2016, are either considered not to be relevant or are not expected to have
significant impact to the company's financial statements and hence have not been specified.

3 Critical accounting estimates, judgments and assumptions

The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with the approved accounting standards
requires the management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affects the
application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under that circumstances, the results of which form the basis of
making judgment about carrying value of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcome that
require material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or liability affected in future periods.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revision to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which estimates are revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and any future period affected.

Judgments made by the management in the application of approved accounting standards that have
significant effect on the financial statements and estimates with a significant risk of material
adjustment in the next year are discussed in the ensuing paragraphs.
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In the process of applying the accounting policies, management has made the following estimates,
judgments and assumptions which are significant to the financial statements:

—  Taxation:

In making the estimates of the income tax liabilities, the management considers currentincome
tax law and decisions of appellate authorities. Deferred tax estimate is made considering future
applicable tax rate.

— Defined Benefit Plan

Certain actuarial assumptions have been adopted as disclosed in these financial statements
for valuation of present value of defined benefit obligation. Any changes in these assumptions
in future years might effect gains and losses in those years. The actuarial valuation involves
making assumptions about discount rates, future salary increases and mortality rates.

—  Property, Plant and Equipment

The management determines the estimated useful lives and related depreciation charge for its
property, plant and equipment. The management reviews the value of assets for possible
impairment on financial year end. Any change in the estimate in the future years might effect
the carrying amounts of the respective items of property, plant and equipment with a
corresponding affect on the depreciation charge and impairment.

—  Stock in trade

The Company reviews the net realizable value of stock in trade to assess any diminution in the
respective carrying values. Net realizable value is determined with reference to the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated cost necessary to make the
sale.

—  Contingencies

The assessment of the contingencies inherently involves the exercise of significant judgment
as the outcome of the future events cannot be predicted with certainty. The Company, based
on the availability of the latest information, estimates the value of contingent assets and
liabilities which may differ on the occurrence / non-occurrence of the uncertain future event(s).

— Impairment allowance against trade debts, deposits, advances and other receivables

The Company reviews the recoverability of its trade debts, advances and other receivables to
assess amount of doubtful debts and provision required there against on annual basis. While
determining provision, the Company considers financial health, market information, ageing of
receivables, credit worthiness, credit rating, past records and business relationship.

—  Slow Moving and Stores Obsolescence

In making estimates of quantum of slow moving and obsolescence, the aging analysis, current
condition of various items component of realization and expected use in future are considered.

—  Impairment

The Company reviews carrying amount of assets annually to determine whether there is any
indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the assets recoverable amount is
estimated and impairment losses are recognized in the profit and loss account.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POILICIES
4.1 Property, plant and equipment
411 Operating Assets

Owned assets

Recognition & Measurement

These are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any, except for free hold
land, buildings and plant and machinery which are stated at revalued amounts.

Depreciation

Depreciation is charged, on a systematic basis over the economic useful life of the asset, on reducing
balance method, which reflects the pattern in which the assets economic benefits are consumed by
the Company, at the rates specified in respective note. Depreciation on additions is charged from the
month in which the assets are put to use while no depreciation is charged in the month in which the
assets are disposed off.

Revaluation Surplus - owned assets

The Surplus on revaluation of Property, Plant and Equipment is recognized in accordance with
section 235 of the Companies Ordinance, 1984. The surplus on revaluation of Property, Plant and
Equipment to the extent of incremental depreciation net of deferred tax thereon charged on the
related assets is transferred to statement of changes in equity under unappropriated profit. In case of
disposal of revalued Property, Plant and Equipment, any revaluation surplus is directly transferred to
retained earning through statement of changes in equity.

Subsequent Cost

Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to income as and when incurred. Major renewals and
improvements are capitalized and the assets so replaced, if any, are retired.

Derecognition

The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized on disposal; or
when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss arising from
the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is included in profit or loss when the
item is derecognized.

4.1.2 Assets subject to finance lease

These are accounted for by recording the assets at the lower of present value of minimum lease
payments under the lease agreements and the fair value of assets acquired. Depreciation is charged
to the profit and loss account using the same basis as for owned assets.

4.1.3 Capital work-in-progress

Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost accumulated up to the balance sheet date less impairment
if any and represents expenditure incurred on property, plant and equipment in the course of
construction / installation / implementation / development including borrowing cost on eligible assets.
These expenditures are transferred to relevant category of property, plant and equipment as and
when the assets becomes available for use.

4.2 Intangible Asset

Computer software is stated at cost less accumulated amortization. Software cost are only capitalized
when it is probable that future economic benefits attributable to the software will flow to the Company
and the same is amortized, on monthly proportionate basis applying the straight line method at the
rate stated in respective note to these financial statements.

4.3 Deferred Cost

Deferred cost is the cost / expenses incurred during the year whose benefits are expected to be
received beyond the period of one year. Cost are amortized over the estimated period of consuming
benefits.
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4.4  Stores, spare parts and loose tools

These are valued at cost calculated on moving average basis less provision for obsolescence, and
slow moving items, except for the items in transit, which are valued at costs accumulated up to the
balance sheet date.

4.5 Stock in trade

Stock of sugar is valued at lower of the weighted average cost and net realizable value. By-products
i.e. Molasses and Baggasse are valued at net realizable value (NRV). Cost in relation to work in
process and finished goods consists of material cost, proportionate manufacturing overheads.

Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated cost necessary to be incurred to make the sale.

4.6 Trade debts

Trade debts are carried at original invoice amount less impairment allowance, if any. Impairment
allowance for doubtful debts is based on management's assessment of customers and their credit
worthiness. Bad debts are written off when there is no realistic prospect of recovery.

4.7 Trade and other payables

Liabilities for trade and other payables are carried at cost which is the fair value of the consideration
to be paid in the future for goods and services received.

4.8 Employees Retirement benefits:
4.8.1 Defined benefit plan

The Company operates an unfunded gratuity scheme for all employees eligible to the scheme with
qualifying service period. Provision is made annually to cover the obligation on the basis of actuarial
valuation carried out using Projected Unit Credit Method, and is charged to profit and loss account,
related details of which are given in the respective note to the financial statements. Remeasurement
gains or losses are recognized in full as and when arise and are charged to other comprehensive
income.

4.9 Finance Lease

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee or meet other criteria defined in IAS 17. All other leases
are classified as operating lease. Assets held under finance lease are recognized as items of
property, plant & equipment of the company at their fair value at the inception of the lease or, if lower,
at the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is
included in the balance sheet as “Liabilities against asset subject to finance lease”. Lease payments
are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the liabilities against assets subject to
finance lease so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.
Finance charges are charged to profit & loss account unless they are directly attributable to qualifying
assets in which case they are capitalized in accordance with the company's general policy on
borrowing cost.

410 Taxation
4.10.1 Current

The charge for current taxation is based on taxable income at the current rate of taxation (after taking
into account applicable tax credits, rebates and exemptions available, if any) or minimum tax and
alternate corporate tax under sections 113 & 113 (C) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001,
respectively whichever is higher. The charge for current tax also includes adjustments, where
considered necessary, to provision for taxation made in previous years arising from assessments
framed during the year for such years.
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4.10.2 Deferred

Deferred tax is recognized using the balance sheet liability method in respect of all temporary
differences arising between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the financial statements
and their tax base and is recognized on the basis of the expected manner of the realization or
settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities using the tax rates enacted or substantially
enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax asset is recognized to the extent that it is probable
that the future taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences can
be utilized. Deferred tax asset is reduced to the extent it is no longer probable that the related tax
benefit will be realized.

4.10.3 Sales tax and Federal Excise Duty (FED)
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognized net off amount of sales tax/FED except:

—  Where amount incurred on a purchase of asset or service is not recoverable from the taxation
authorities, in which case the tax / duty is recognized as part of the cost of the acquisition of the
assets or as part of the expense item as applicable; and

— Receivables or payables that are stated with the amount of Sales tax / FED included.

The net amount of sales tax and FED recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is
included as part of receivables or payables in the balance sheet.

4.11 ljarah Lease contracts

Leases, where a significant portion of the risk and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor,
are classified as ljarah lease. Payments made under the ljarah lease agreements are charged to
profit & loss account.

4.12 Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the future economic benefits will flow to the
Company and the revenue can be measured reliably. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, excluding discounts, rebates and government levies.

Revenue from sale of goods is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the
goods have passed to the buyer, usually on dispatch of the goods to customers.

Electric power supply is recognized when the supply of power is passed-on through transmission
lines.

Rental income is recorded on an accrual basis.
4.13 Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupee which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency.

414 Foreign currency transaction and translation

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded into reporting currency at the rates of exchange
prevailing on the date of transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated into reporting currency using year-end spot foreign exchange rates. Non-
monetary assets and liabilities are translated using exchange rates that existed when the values were
determined. Exchange differences on foreign currency translations are included in profit and loss
account.

4.15 Provisions

Provisions are recognized in the balance sheet when the Company has present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of past event, and it is probable that outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and reliable estimates can be made. However, provisions are
reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect current best estimate.
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4.16 Borrowing cost

Mark-up, interest and other charges on loans are capitalized up to the date of commissioning of
the respective qualifying assets. All other mark-up, interest, profit and other charges are charged to
profit & loss account.

4.17 Financial Instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are recognized at the time when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument and derecognized when the Company loses control of
contractual rights that comprise the financial assets and in the case of financial liability when the
obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. Any gain or loss, if any, on
derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities is included in the profit and loss account
currently.

4.18 Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities

All financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance
sheet if the Company has a legal enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and intends
either to settle on net basis or to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

4.19 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried at cost. For the purpose of the cash flow statement, cash and
cash equivalents consist of cash in hand and bank balances net of short term borrowings.

4.20 Dividend and appropriation to reserves

Dividend and appropriation to reserve are recognized in the financial statements in the period in
which these are approved.

4.21 Impairment
Financial assets

A financial asset is assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any objective
evidence that it is impaired. A financial asset is considered to be impaired if objective evidence
indicated that one or more events have had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of
that asset.

The company considers evidence of impairment for receivable and other financial assets at specific
asset level. Impairment losses are recognized as expense in profit and loss account. An impairment
loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined, if no impairment loss had been recognized.

Non-Financial assets

The carrying amount of non-financial assets is assessed at each reporting date to determine whether
there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the assets recoverable
amount of such assets is estimated. Recoverable amount is higher of an asset's fair value less cost to
sell and value in use. An impairment loss is recognized as expense in the profit and loss account for
the amount by which asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.

4.22 Employee compensated absences

The Company provides for compensated absences for all eligible employees in the period in which
these are earned in accordance with the terms of employment.

2016 2015
5 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Rupees in ‘000)
These are comprised as under:
Operating fixed assets Note - 5.1 1,120,570 1,164,277
Capital work-in-progress Note - 5.2 344,334 2,362
1,464,904 1,166,639
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5.1 Operating Fixed Assets

OWNED LEASED EZV;ISEE%&
Factory Non-Factory ; Computer | Stores & Spares
Net carrying value as Freehold | pyjdingon | Buildingon | Plantand | Fuiture |\, opo o | Equipment & | held for capital | Sub-Total | 2™ 3 | Gran Total
at September 30, 2016 fand free hold land | free hold land | Machinery | and Fittings Appliances | expenditure Machinery
......................... Rupees in’000
Opening Net Book
Value (NBV) 93,500 124,245 63,513 | 799,370 1,651 8,438 2,816 5,371 | 1,098,904 65,373 | 1,164,277
Direct Additions at Cost = = = = 37| 9,657 190 — 9,884 — 9,884
Transfer from Capital
Work in Progress — — — 12,324 — — — — 12,324 — 12,324
Disposal at NBV = — — — — (290) — — (290) — (290)
Depreciation charge for
the year — (12,424) (6,351)| (40,431) (169)[ (2,353) (360) (269)| (62,356) (3,269)| (65,625)
Closing Net Book Value 93,500 111,821 57,162 771,263 1,519 15,452 2,645 5,102 1,058,466 62,104 1,120,570
Gross carrying value as
at September 30, 2016
Cost 7,043 27,362 12,365 | 742,093 6,507 | 30,437 11,892 5,867 | 843,566 70,000 | 913,566
Accumulated Depreciation
- Cost — (18,009) (8,955) | (257,058) (4,988) | (14,985) (9,246) (765)| (314,005) (7,896) | (321,901)
7,043 9,353 3,410 485,035 1,619 15,452 2,645 5102 529,561 62,104 591,665
Revaluation 86,457 158,654 73,618 | 378,502 — — — — 697,231 — 697,231
Accumulated Depreciation
- Revaluation — (56,186) (19,866) [ (92,274) — — — — (168,326) — | (168,326)
86,457 102,468 53,752 286,228 — — — — 528,905 — 528,905
Total Net Book Value 93,500 111,821 57,162 771,263 1,519 15,452 2,645 5,102 1,058,466 62,104 1,120,570
OWNED &
OWNED LEASED LEASED
Factory Non-Factory y Computer | Stores & Spares
Net carrying value as Freehold | Buildingon | Buidingon | Manand | Futture | yepicies | Equipment& | held for capital | sub - Total | 20 2'Y | Grand Total
at September 30, 2015 an free hold land | free hold land | Machinery | and Fittings Appliances | expenditure Machinery
......................... Rupees in’000
Opening Net Book
Value (NBV) 93,500 135,920 69,780 | 638,999 1,835 | 10,547 2,934 5,654 959,169 | 127,143 | 1,086,312
Direct Additions at Cost — — — — — — 272 — 272 — 272
Transfer from Capital
Work in Progress — 2,091 776 | 140,282 — — — — 143,149 — 143,149
Transfer from Leased to
Owned at WDV — — — 88,655 —_ —_ - — 88,655 | (88,655) —
Assets Sold and
Leased Back - - — | (30,000) - — — — (30,000)| 30,000 —
Depreciation charge for
the year — (13,766) (7,043)| (38,565) (184)| (2,109) (390) (283) (62,340) [ (3,116) (65,455)
Closing Net Book Value 93,500 124,245 63,513 799,370 1,651 8,438 2,816 5,371 1,098,904 65,373 1,164,277
Gross carrying value as
at Sept 30, 2015
Cost 7,043 27,362 12,365 | 729,769 6,470 | 21,930 11,702 5,867 822,507 | 70,000 892,507
Accumulated Depreciation
- Cost — (16,970) (8,576) | (231,691) (4,819)](13,492) (8,886) (496)| (284,930)| (4,627)| (289,557)
7,043 10,392 3,789 498,078 1,651 8,438 2,816 5,371 537,577 65,373 602,950
Revaluation 86,457 158,654 73,618 | 378,502 — — — — 697,231 — 697,231
Accumulated Depreciation
_ Revaluation — (44,801) (13,894) | (77,209) — — — — (135,904) — (135,904)
86,457 113,853 59,724 301,293 — — — — 561,327 — 561,327
Total Net Book Value 93,500 124,245 63,513 799,370 1,651 8,438 2,816 5,371 1,098,904 65,373 1,164,277
Depreciation rate % per
annum —_ 10 10 5 10 20 10 & 20 5 5
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5.1.1

5.2

5.21

The Company's freehold land, building and plant and machinery were revalued on September 30,
2014, by independent professional valuator M/s Oceanic Surveyors (Pvt) Limited at fair market value.
The resultant surplus on revaluation has been credited to the surplus on revaluation of property, plant
& equipment.

Depreciation charge for the year has been allocated as under:

2016 2015
(Rupees in ‘000)

Cost of Sales Note 26 56,124 55,730
Administrative Expenses Note 29 9,501 9,725
65,625 65,455

The following Property, plant and equipments were sold during the year:

) Written Sale Gain Mode

Particulars Cost Down Proceeds | _°M of Purchaser
Value Sale Sale
....................... Rupees in '000.......c.cccccceumerennn.

Vehicles - Motorcycles
(Various) having
carrying value below
Rs. 50,000 Company  Various Employees
September 30, 2016 1,150 290 1,083 793 Policy

September 30, 2015 30,000 30,000 30,000 —

Capital work-in-progress

Capital expenditure | Transferred to
Cost at incurred during operating Cost at
October 01 the year fixed assets September 30
................................... Rupees in ‘000 ...........cccoeeeeeeecemmmnnnnnnnnnnnns
............................................... 2016 ..o
Plant and Machinery - under erection
Owned 2,362 223,192 12,324 213,230
Leased — 70,000 — 70,000
Civil works under construction — 58,720 — 58,720
Borrowing cost related to
plant & machinery Note 5.2.1 — 2.384 — 2.384
As at September 30, 2016 2,362 354,296 12,324 344,334
................................................. 2015 e
Plant and Machinery - under erection 57,169 85,475 140,282 2,362
Civil works under construction 2,867 — 2,867 —
As at September 30, 2015 60,036 85,475 143,149 2,362

Effective rate of interest charged for borrowing cost is 8.51% to 10.30% (2015: Nil)
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2016 2015
(Rupees in ‘000)
6 INTANGIBLE ASSET
Computer Software
Net carrying value as at Sep 30
Opening net book value (NBV) 869 497
Additions at cost during the year — 638
Amortization charged during the year Note 6.1 & 29 (425) (266)
Closing Net Book Value 444 869
Gross carrying value as at Sep 30
Cost 1,275 1,275
Accumulated Amortization (831) (406)
444 869
6.1  The cost is being amortized using straight line method over a period of three years.
LONG TERM DEPOSITS
Finance lease deposits 18,000 7,500
Lease deposit being adjustable within next twelve
months classified under current assets Note 13 (6,000) —
12,000 7,500
ljarah lease deposit Note 7.1 2,930 2,930
Other security deposits 536 536
15,467 10,966
7.1 This represent deposit of Rs. 2,930 thousand (2015: Rs. 2,930 thousand) placed with shariah
compliant financial institution.
8 DEFERRED COST
Opening balance at the beginning of the year Note 8.1 33,373 —
Incurred during the year 5,140 41,716
Amortization charged during the year (9,628) (8,343)
28,885 33,373
8.1  Deferred costs represent the costs incurred in respect of obtaining an independent / dedicated feeder
for evacuation of power from the Company's power generation unit to Grid Station. The benefit of
these costs are expected to be received over the period of license; however, the same are being
amortized over the period of Power Purchase Agreement that is five years.
9 STORES, SPARE PARTS AND LOOSE TOOLS
Stores 26,853 24,611
Spare parts 36,193 30,661
Loose tools 2,540 2,679
65,586 57,951
Provision for slow moving items and obsolescence Note 9.1 15,911 15,625
49,675 42,326
9.1 Reconciliation of provision for slow moving and obsolete items
Opening balance at the beginning 15,625 14,354
Charge for the year Note 30 286 1,271
Closing balance at the end 15,911 15,625
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10 STOCK-IN-TRADE

2016 2015
(Rupees in ‘000)

Sugar Note 10.1 & 26 599,509 557,362
Sugar in process Note 26 1,609 510
Molasses in process 179 226
Baggasse 4,770 2,846

606,067 560,944

10.1 The closing stock of sugar having carrying value of Rs. 350,383 thousands (2015: Rs. 46,094
thousand) has been pledged against cash finance obtained from Banking Companies.

11 TRADE DEBTS

Unsecured - Considered Good Note 11.1 — 11,635

11.1 This represents receivable from Hyderabad Electric Supply Company (HESCO) in respect of
electricity generated and transmitted. During the year amount has been received and there is no
outstanding balance in respect of sale of power.

12 LOANS AND ADVANCES
Interest free

Secured
Loans to Employees - Other than CEO,

Directors & Executives Note 12.1 1,262 1,500
Un-Secured
Advances to
- Employees against salaries 96 559
- Contractors and suppliers 12,533 11,527
- Growers Considered good
- non interest bearing Note 12.2 & 12.3 36,406 9,137
- interest bearing Note 12.2 & 12.4 54,663 1,880
Considered doubtful 6,925 6,925
97,994 17,942
Impairment allowance against
doubtful growers advances 6,925 6,925
91,069 11,017
104,960 24,603

12.1 Loans and advances have been given to employees for the purchase of house hold equipments and
housing assistance in accordance with the terms of the employments and are repayable in the
different monthly installments and are non-interest / mark-up bearing. These are secured against the
retirement benefits.

12.2 The Company makes advances to growers which comprises of cash payments and also in shape of
fertilizers / seeds, as an advance which is adjustable against the supplies of sugarcane during the
following season.

12.3 It includes an amount of Rs. 2,341 thousand (2015: Nil thousand) in respect of due from related
parties. The maximum month aggregate amount due from related parties during the year was Rs.
7,554 thousand (2015: Rs. 6,095 thousand).
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12.3.1 Aging analysis of due from related parties is as follows:
2016 2015
(Rupees in ‘000)
Upto five months 500 —
Upto three months 1,841 —
2,341 —

12.4

13

14

14.1

14.2

This includes interest charged @ 8.36% (2015: 9.08%) to growers, during the year, amounting to Rs.
2,474 thousand (2015: Rs. 2,189 thousand). During the year 2015, advances to growers disbursed
and adjusted against cane supplies before year end.

TRADE DEPOSITS & SHORT TERM PREPAYMENTS
Trade Deposits

Bank Guarantee Margin Note 24.2 6,250 —
Lease deposit being adjustable within
next twelve months Note 7 6,000 —
12,250 —
Short Term Prepayments
Prepaid Insurance 1,135 457
Prepaid Rent 1,280 480
Others 75 75
2,490 1,012
14,740 1,012
OTHER RECEIVABLES
Inland freight subsidy receivable Note 14.1 — 18,713
Due from deceased executive Note 14.2 — —
Further sales tax refundable Note 14.3 8,558 4,283
Road Cess Note 14.4 3,613 3,613
12,171 26,609
Inland Freight Subsidy receivable
Due from Trade Development Authority of Pakistan 18,713 18,713
Impairment allowance there against (18,713) —
— 18,713

These were the receivable from the Government of Pakistan through Trade Development Authority of
Pakistan. Total receivable in this respect amounted to Rs. 21,703 thousands; however an amount of
Rs. 2,990 thousand relating to the export sales of year 2013-14, has not been accounted for in the
books as a matter of prudence. Further, due to uncertainties regarding the recoverability of the
subsidy, and as a matter of prudence, an impairment allowance has been made against the amount
of Inland Freight Subsidy already recorded.

Due from deceased executive:
Due from deceased executive 12,996 12,996
Impairment allowance there against (12,996) (12,996)
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14.3

14.4

15

15.1

16

17

This represent Further Sales Tax of one percent and two percent on sales to unregistered persons.
The Company has paid Further Tax in the monthly Sales Tax & Federal Excise Returns for the month
of June 2013 amounting to Rs. 764 thousand and July 2013 amounting to Rs. 3,519 thousand on
buyers behalf which aggregated to Rs. 4,283 thousand and not received by the buyers. In addition,
during the year, an amount of Rs. 4,275 thousand on account of Further Tax at the rate of two percent
on sales to unregistered persons has again been paid by the Company and not received by the
buyers. The Company has applied for the refund and the matter is pending for the final decision.

This represents receivable of Mill & Growers share of Sugarcane (Development) Cess for the
crushing season 2014-15. The Company has paid the Cess and as per the notification issued by the
Agriculture, Supply & Prices Department, Government of Sindh, the Company has filed
documentation in this respect in the relevant department for refund of the said Cess. The outcome of
the same is awaited.

2016 2015
(Rupees in ‘000)
CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash in hand 364 82

Cash at banks
- current accounts Note 15.1 122,891 9,667
123,255 9,749

Cash at banks include Rs. 43,451 thousand (2015: Rs. 1,495 thousand) with shariah compliant
financial institutions.

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID UP CAPITAL 2016 2015
2016 2015 (Rupees in ‘000)
10,860,000 10,860,000 Ordinary shares of Rs.10 each allotted
for consideration fully paid in cash 108,600 108,600
1,086,000 1,086,000 Ordinary shares of Rs.10 each
allotted as bonus shares 10,860 10,860
11,946,000 11,946,000 119,460 119,460

SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF PROPERTY,
PLANT & EQUIPMENT

Gross opening balance 561,327 595,157

Incremental depreciation charged on surplus on

revaluation of property, plant & equipment - net of deferred tax (22,696) (23,004)

Deferred Tax on Incremental Depreciation charged

on surplus on revaluation of property, plant & equipment (9,726) (10,826)
(32,422) (33,830)
528,905 561,327

Related deferred Tax (132,734) (151,957)

Revaluation surplus net of deferred tax 396,171 409,370
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18

18.1

18.2

18.3

19

19.1

2016 2015
(Rupees in ‘000)
LONG TERM FINANCING

Secured

From Banking Company under mark-up arrangements

Demand Finance - | Note 18.1 & 18.3 66,000 88,000

Demand Finance - Il Note 18.2 & 18.3 138,414 —
204,414 88,000

Current portion shown under current liabilities (22,000) (22,000)
182,414 66,000

This represents Demand Finance | obtained from MCB Bank Limited under mark-up arrangements
with a grace period of one year from disbursement of loan and is repayable in 16 varying quarterly
installments starting from December 2015 with a mark-up payments @ 3 months KIBOR + 2.5% on
quarterly basis.

This represents Demand Finance Il obtained from MCB Bank Limited under mark-up arrangements
with a grace period of one year from disbursement of loan and repayable in 16 quarterly installments
starting from November 2017 with a mark-up payments @ 3 months KIBOR + 2.5% on quarterly
basis. The aggregate financing facility amounted to Rs. 248,000 thousands (2015: Nil), out of which
Rs. 109,586 thousand (2015: Nil) were un-availed as at the year end.

The above loans are secured against the Personal Guarantees of all Sponsoring Directors. 1st
Exclusive Charge over specific plant & Machinery. 1st Registered Exclusive charge over all Land &
Building of the Company. Additionally secured against 1st paripassu charge over other plant &
machinery of the Company.

LIABILITIES AGAINST ASSET SUBJECT TO FINANCE LEASE Zm(gupees in ‘0020())15
Balance at the beginning of the year 53,094 79,495
Lease obtained during the year 70,000 30,000
Repayments during the year (15,502) (56,401)
107,592 53,094
Less: Current portion shown under current liabilities 27,474 15,454
Note 19.1 80,118 37,640

The amounts of future payments for the lease and the period of their maturity is as follows:
Minimum Lease Financial Present Value

Payments (MLP) Charges of MLP
........................... Rupees in 000 .........cccccevrinnees
................................. {1 |
Rentals due within one year 34,183 6,709 27,474
Rentals due after one year but within five years 94,309 14,191 80,118
Balance as at September 30, 2016 128,492 20,900 107,592
................................... 2015 o
Rentals due within one year 19,858 4,404 15,454
Rentals due after one year but within five years 42,066 4,426 37,640
Balance as at September 30, 2015 61,924 8,830 53,094
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19.1.1 The Company has entered into sale & lease back agreement, for an amount of Rs. 40,000 thousands
& Rs. 30,000 thousand with Orix Leasing Pakistan Limited. The Company has option to purchase the
assets upon expiry of the lease term by making payment of residual value by way of adjustment of
security deposit and intends to opt such option. Minimum lease payments have been discounted
using rates linked with KIBOR ranging between 11.07% to 12.04% (2015: 12.04% to 15.69%) being
rates implicit in the lease. Lease rentals are payable in 48 months on monthly basis starting from July
2013 and October 2015 respectively.

19.1.2 During the year, the Company has entered into lease agreement, for an amount of Rs. 70,000
thousands with Sindh Leasing Company Limited. The Company has option to purchase the assets
upon expiry of the lease term by making payment of residual value by way of adjustment of security
deposit and intends to opt such option. Minimum lease payments have been discounted using rates
linked with 6 Months Kibor plus 4.25%. Lease rentals are payable in 60 months in arrears on monthly
basis starting after the final payment to be made after errection of lease assets. The aggregate lease
financing facility amounted to Rs. 80,000 thousands (2015: Nil), out of which Rs. 10,000 thousand
(2015: Nil) were un-utilized as at the year end.

2016 2015
(Rupees in ‘000)

20 DEFERRED LIABILITIES

Deferred taxation Note 20.1 190,966 232,046

Market committee fee Note 20.2 & 24.1.1 53,560 47,924

Employees retirement benefits

- Defined benefit plan Note 20.3 50,541 45,379
295,067 325,349

20.1 Deferred taxation:

Opening Balance 232,046 238,788

Impact of Surplus on revaluation during

the year & effect of change in tax rate (9,497) (5,087)

Impact of deferred tax on actuarial gain 1,457 —

Reversal during the year Note 33 (33,040) (1,655)

Closing balance 190,966 232,046

20.1.1 Deferred tax (debit) / credit arising due to:
Deferred tax credit arising due to:

— surplus on revaluation 132,734 151,958

— accelerated depreciation 110,124 117,391

— assets obtained under finance lease 7,354 3,929
250,212 273,278

Deferred tax debit arising due to:

— provisions / impairment (41,980) (41,232)

— minimum tax carried forward (17,266) —
190,966 232,046

20.2 Market committee fee

Opening Balance 47,924 41,621

Charge during the year 5,636 6,303

Closing balance 53,560 47,924
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20.3 Defined Benefits Plan:

The Company operates an unfunded gratuity scheme for its employees eligible to the benefit effective
from July 01, 2003 and provision is made as per actuarial valuation of the scheme conducted as of
September 30, 2016 by M/s Nauman Associates (Consulting Actuaries) under the “Projected Unit
Credit ” method. The significant actuarial assumptions used for actuarial valuation for the gratuity
scheme are as follows:

2016 2015
(Rupees in ‘000)
20.3.1 Movement in the present value of the obligation

Present value of obligation at the beginning of the year 45,379 40,429
Charge for the year
Current service cost 5,800 5,726
Interest cost 5,996 4,644
11,796 10,370
Benefits paid during the year (1,933) (5,420)
Remeasurement gain & experience adjustments  Note 20.3.4 (4,701) —
Present value of obligation at the end of the year 50,541 45,379
20.3.2 Expense for the year charged to Profit & Loss Account
Current service cost 5,800 5,726
Interest cost 5,996 4,644
11,796 10,370
20.3.3 Charge for the year has been allocated as under:
Cost of sales Note 26.1 8,847 7,778
Administrative expenses Note 29.1 2,949 2,592
11,796 10,370
20.3.4 Remeasurement gain & experience adjustments
Actuarial gains from changes in financial assumptions 563 —
Experience adjustments 4,138 —
4,701 —
20.3.5 Significant Actuarial Assumptions
Discount rate used for interest cost 13.50% 11.50%
Discount rate used for year end obligation 7.25% 13.50%
Salary increased used for year end obligation 6.25% 12.50%
Retirement age Age 60 Age 60
Mortality Rates SLIC SLIC
2001-2005 2001-2005
Setback Setback
1 year 1 year
20.3.6 Year end Sensitivity Analysis (+ 100 bps) on Defined Benefit Obligation
Discount Rate + 100 bps 47,711 42,765
Discount Rate - 100 bps 53,732 48,009
Salary Increase + 100 bps 53,799 48,064
Salary Increase - 100 bps 47,599 42,653
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21 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Creditors Note 21.1
Accrued liabilities
Advances from customers
Sales tax / FED payable
Worker's Profit participation Fund Note 21.2
Worker's Welfare Fund
Unclaimed dividend
Other liabilities Note 21.3

2016

2015

(Rupees in ‘000)

241,922 184,294
25,818 34,387
— 1,189

— 9,681

594 4,822
3,381 3,155
13,736 1,550
3,964 3,287
289,415 242,365

211 This includes and amount of Rs. 413 thousand (2015: Nil) due to related parties.
21.1.1 The maximum aggregate amount due to related parties at any month end during the year was Rs.

13,135 thousand (2015: Rs. 8,906 thousand).

21.2 Workers Profit Participation Fund
Opening balance at the beginning of the year
Interest paid on funds utilized by the Company  Note 21.2.1

Less: Payments made during the year
Add: Allocation for the year Note 30
Closing balance at the end of the year

21.2.1 The effective rate of interest applied during the year was 12.5% (2015: 15%).

21.3 Other liabilities
Sales tax withheld
Income tax deducted at source
Cane field staff Note 21.3.1

Others - Employees' social security & old age
benefits, workers compensation & others

4,822 1,938
287 110
5,109 2,048
(5,109) (2,048)
594 4,822
594 4,822
27 474
2,279 633
214 1,025
1,444 1,155
3,964 3,287

21.3.1 These represents amount received from cane field employees under Company's motor cycle policy.

22  ACCRUED FINANCE COST

Accrued financial charges on liabilities
against asset subject to finance lease

Accrued mark-up on long term financing

Accrued mark-up / Profit on
short term borrowings Note 22.1

221 Accrued Markup / profit on short term borrowings includes Rs.
thousand) in respect of shariah compliant financial institution.

317 175

2,720 2,108

17,265 11,473

20,302 13,756
8,809 thousand (2015: Rs. 5,826
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2016 2015
(Rupees in ‘000)
23  SHORT TERM BORROWINGS -Secured

Cash Finance / Karobar Finance Note 23.1 & 23.2 569,680 242,343
Running Finance Note 23.1 75,000 74,961
644,680 317,304

231 The aggregate financing facilities obtained amounted to Rs. 1,725,000 thousands (2015: Rs.
1,525,000 thousands), out of which Rs. 1,080,320 thousand (2015: Rs. 1,207,696 thousand) were
un-availed as at the year end. These are secured by pledge of sugar stocks under the supervision of
approved muccadum and hypothecation over current assets of the Company, exclusive & pari passu
hypothecation charge on Company's plant & machinery and 1st equitable mortgage charge over fixed
assets of the Company. The financing facilities are collaterally secured by the personal guarantees of
all the sponsor directors . The facilities carries markup at 3 & 6 months KIBOR as base rate plus 2% to
2.75% per annum (September 2015: 2% & 3%) chargeable and payable quarterly. The facility is
renewable annually at the time of maturity.

23.2 Cash Finance / Karobar Finance includes Rs. 200,000 thousand (2015: Rs. 200,000 thousand) in
respect of shariah compliant financial institution.

24 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
241 Contingencies:

24.1.1 The Company has filed a suit in the Honourable High Court of Sindh against the levy of market
committee fee by the Government of Sindh on sugarcane purchases at the factory. The Sindh High
Court has granted status quo. Full provision of Rs. 53,560 thousands (2015: Rs. 47,924 thousands)
has been made as a matter of prudence, which includes Rs. 5,636 thousands for the current crushing
season 2015-2016. Refer note 20.2 of the financial statements.

24.1.2 The Company has filed a petition in the Honourable Supreme Court of Pakistan against a show cause
notice issued by Competition Commission of Pakistan (CCP), challenging the vary jurisdiction of the
Competition Commission. The Honourable Supreme Court of Pakistan has disposed the petition on
the ground that this matter is already under proceedings with Honourable High Courts and refrained
CCP from passing any final / penal order till a final decision is achieved at Honourable High Courts.
Proceedings are pending thereat. There are no financial implications related to this at the moment.

24.1.3 The Company has filed a suit before the Honourable High Court of Sindh against Pakistan Standards
and Quality Control Authority (the Authority) Challenging the levy of marking fee under PSQCA Act-VI
of 1996. The Authority has demanded a fee payment @ 0.1% of ex-factory price for the year 2008-
2009 amounting to Rs. 1,915 thousands. The Company is of the view that demand notifications so
raised are without any lawful authority under the PSQCA Act-VI of 1996 and are in violation of the
constitution. The Honourable High Court of Sindh has accepted the petition and termed that
impugned notifications have been issued without lawful authority and suspended the operation of the
impugned notifications. The constitutional petition filed before the Honourable High Court of Sindh
has been allowed in favour of the Company. In the meantime the legal counsel of the Company has
filed caveat in respect of an appeal to be filed by PSQCA against the judgment in the Honourable
Supreme Court of Pakistan. No provision has been made in this respect, as the Company is confident
that the same is not likely to be materialized.

24.1.4 The matter of quality premium continues to be pending with the Honorable Supreme Court of
Pakistan since the year 2004 after it granted leave to defend on the question of issue of quality
premium. The Apex court also ordered that no coercive action for recovery of quality premium shall be
taken against the mills till the case is decided. The Company purchased sugar cane at market rate,
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which was higher than minimum support price fixed by the government during the period from 2004-
2016. The resultant aggregate excess payment on account of various subsidies born by Company
was higher than that absorbed the quality premium for the said years of Rs. 780,942 thousand. It also
holds the view that uniform formula being developed by MINFAL for mills and cane growers would be
applicable prospectively. In view of above, the Company has not recorded any obligation.

24.1.5 The Company filed a suit before the Honorable High Court of Sindh during the season 2013-14
against the cane purchase price of Rs. 172 per 40 kg as fixed by Government of Sindh which was
dismissed by the Honorable High Court and the matter was taken up by the Company with the
Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan. In the due course of time, the Government of Sindh fixed the
price of sugarcane for the season 2014-15 at Rs. 182 per 40 Kg in pursuance of which the Sindh
Chamber of Agriculture filed a petition in the Honorable High Court of Sindh. The Honorable High
Court disposed of the case upon settlement with the consent of all the stake holders whereby it was
settled that Sugar Mills shall purchase the sugarcane from growers at Rs. 160 per 40 kg for crushing
season 2014-15 whereas Rs. 12 per 40 kg will be paid by the Government of Sindh. The Honorable
High Court has subjected this interim arrangement to the decision of Civil appeal No 48 of 2015
pending before the Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan and also have ordered that the fate of
remaining Rs. 10 i.e., difference of Rs. 182 and 172 will also be dependent upon the decision of
Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan. The Company as a matter of prudence has accounted for the
said difference of Rs. 10 in the financial statements aggregating to Rs. 157,579 thousand.

24.2 Guarantee:

Rs. 25,000 thousand (2015: Nil) guarantee issued by the Bank for six months period in favour of
Engro Fertilizers Limited on behalf of the Company for the procurement of Fertilizers for onward
supply to sugarcane growers. The guarantee is secured against the 25% cash margin and rest
against the existing charge over current and fixed assets of the Company held as collateral. Also refer
note no 13 of the financial statements.

24.3 Commitments:

24.3.1 Capital commitments in respect of civil works and plant & machinery amount to Rs. 74,000 thousands
(2015: Rs. 33,649 thousands).

24.3.2 The Company has entered into ljarah Lease agreement, for the amount of Rs. 29,334 thousands with
Al-Baraka Bank Pakistan Limited to acquire of Shredder Turbine for enhancing power generation
capacity. The Company has option to purchase the assets upon expiry of the lease term by making
payment of residual value by way of adjustment of security deposit. ljarah Rentals are based on profit
rates linked with KIBOR aggregating to 9.544% to 12.028%. ljarah lease rentals are payable in 20
quarterly installments starting from March 2014.

The Company is committed for minimum ljarah rental payments for each of the following period as

follows:
2016 2015
(Rupees in ‘000)
Not more than one year 7,134 7,468
More than one year but not more than five years 8,917 16,803
16,051 24,271

24.3.2.1 ljarah Lease is arrangement with shariah compliant financial institution.
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2016 2015
(Rupees in ‘000)
25 SALES
Local Sales 3,065,115 3,098,696
Less: Brokerage Commission (1,454) —
Federal Excise Duty / Sales Tax / Further Tax (231,004) (229,532)
(232,458) (229,532)
2,832,657 2,869,164
26 COST OF SALES
Sugar cane consumed (including cane procurement expenses) 2,678,277 2,708,922
Salaries, wages and staff benefits Note 26.1 120,831 113,427
Stores, spare parts & loose tools consumed 89,585 105,871
Fuel, power & utilities 6,382 14,961
Insurance 7,377 7,550
Repairs and maintenance 5,571 5,235
Vehicle running expenses 7,747 9,836
ljarah Lease Rentals Note 26.2 6,664 8,038
Depreciation Note 5.1.2 56,124 55,730
Amortization of deferred cost Note 8.1 9,628 8,343
Other expenses 9,221 10,979
2,997,407 3,048,892
Sale of Electric Power Note 26.3 35,946 11,635
Sugar -in-process
— Opening 510 886
— Closing Note 10 (1,609) (510)
(1,099) 376
2,960,362 3,037,633
Sale of Molasses 219,931 277,274
Inventory adjustment (47) (24)
219,884 277,250
Sale of Baggasse Note 26.4 15,332 29,080
Inventory adjustment 1,924 2,696
17,256 31,776
Cost of goods manufactured 2,723,222 2,728,607
Finished sugar
— Opening stock 557,362 440,832
— Closing stock Note 10 (599,509) (557,362)
(42,147) (116,530)
2,681,075 2,612,077

26.1 Salaries, wages and benefits include Rs. 8,847 thousands (2015: Rs. 7,778 thousands) in respect of
defined benefit plan.

26.2 ljarah Lease rentals are paid in respect of arrangement with shariah compliant financial institution.
26.3 These figures are net off sales tax of Rs. 6,111 thousands (2015: Rs. 1,978 thousands).
26.4 These figures are net off sales tax of Rs. 2,606 thousands (2015: Rs. 4,944 thousands).
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2016 2015
(Rupees in ‘000)
27 PROFIT ON TRADING ACTIVITIES

Sales 27,193 —

Less: Sales Tax (1,295) —

25,898 —

Less: Purchases & other expenses thereon 23,719 —

2,179 —

28 DISTRIBUTION COST
Handling and stacking 522 769
29  ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries, wages and staff benefits Note 29.1 51,067 48,725
Rent, rates and taxes 1,059 1,181
Communication 744 532
Repairs and maintenance 418 632
Utilities 598 495
Entertainment 623 545
Subscription 3,531 1,992
Cartage 27 24
Printing and stationery 942 1,289
Insurance 2,459 2,517
Legal and professional charges 1,407 1,542
Conveyance and traveling 3,681 2,870
Depreciation Note 5.1.2 9,501 9,725
Amortization of intangible asset Note 6 425 266
Others 1,517 3,209
77,999 75,544

29.1 Salaries, wages and benefits include Rs. 2,949 thousands (2015: Rs. 2,592 thousands) in respect of
defined benefit plan.

30 OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

Auditors' remuneration Note 30.1 1,149 869
Impairment allowance for inland freight subsidy  Note 14.1 18,713 —
Corporate social responsibility costs Note 30.2 1,200 1,156
Workers Profit Participation Fund Note 21.1 594 4,822
Workers Welfare Fund 226 1,832
Provision for slow moving and obsolete items Note 9.1 286 1,271
22,168 9,950
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30.1

30.2

31

32

321

32.2

Auditors' remuneration

Statutory Auditors - Kreston Hyder Bhimji and Co.
Audit fee

Half yearly review fee

Code of corporate governance certification

Sindh Sales Tax on Services

Cost Auditors - Siddiqi and Co.
Audit fee

Out of pocket expenses

Sindh Sales Tax on Services

2016

2015

(Rupees in ‘000)

675 600
55 50

40 30

62 41
832 721
280 125
15 15
22 8
317 148
1,149 869

Corporate social responsibility costs do not include any amount paid to any person or organization in

which any director or their spouse had any interest.
OTHER INCOME
Income from non financial assets:
Gain on sale of items of property, plant and equipment
Others - Rent & related receipts

Income from others:
Insurance Claim
Liabilities written back

FINANCE COST
Mark-up on long term financing
Mark-up / profit on short-term borrowings

Financial charges on liabilities against asset
subject to finance lease

Bank charges
Interest on worker's profit participation fund

Note 32.1 & 32.2

793 —
65 81
858 81
5,202 —
787 —
5,989 —
6,847 81
6,878 6,077
36,802 70,311
4,095 3,788
797 836
287 110
48,859 81,122

Finance costincludes Rs. 18,712 thousand (2015: Rs. 38,827 thousand) in respect of financing under

shariah compliant arrangements.

This amount is net off of Rs. 2,474 thousand (2015: Rs. 2,189 thousand) in respect of grower finance

to be recovered from growers.
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2016 2015
(Rupees in ‘000)
33 TAXATION

Current year 30,147 34,038
Deferred (33,040) (1,655)
(2,893) 32,383

33.1 Provision for current taxation represents the minimum tax being the turnover tax under section 113 of
Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 net of available tax credits, hence tax reconciliation of tax expense with
accounting profit is not presented for the current year.

33.2 Subsequent to the balance sheet date, as disclosed in note no 44.2, the Board of Directors have
recommended dividend of Paisa Sixty only (Rs. 0.6) per share i.e. 6%, which is in excess of lower of
40% of its taxable profit and 50% of paid up capital and is expected to be paid within six months of the
end of the tax year. Accordingly no provision for tax on undistributed reserves under section 5A of the
Income Tax Ordinance 2001 is made in these financial statements.

2016 2015
34 EARNING PER SHARE - Basic and Diluted (Rupees in ‘000)
Profit after taxation ( Rupees '000 ) 13,953 57,400
Number of ordinary shares 11,946,000 11,946,000
Earning per share - (Rupees) 1.17 4.80

There is no dilutive effect on the basic earnings per share of the Company.

35 CASH AND CASH EQUVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalent comprise of the following items

Cash and bank balances 123,255 9,749
Less: Short term borrowings (644,680) (317,304)
(521,425) (307,555)

36 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
36.1 FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Company's financial assets and liabilities at the
following reporting periods.

2016
Interest / Mark-up bearing Non Interest / Mark-up bearing
Interest/ Maturity = Maturity Sub Maturity Maturity Sub
markup upto one after one Total upto one after one Total Total
rate year year year year 2016

............................................ (Rupees in ‘000) .........cceeerriemrnmmnneines e snees
Financial Assets

Deposits — — — 12,250 15,467 27,717 27,7117
Loans and advances — — — 1,358 — 1,358 1,358
Cash and bank balances — — — 123,255 — 123,255 123,255
TOTAL2016 — — — 136,863 15,467 152,330 152,330

Financial Liabilities
Long Term Finance 3 M Kibor +

2% & 2.5% 22,000 182,414 204,414 — — — 204,414
Liabilities against
assets subject 11.07% to
to finance lease 12.04% 27,474 80,118 107,592 — — — 107,592
Trade & other payables 12.50% 594 — 594 288,821 — 288,821 289,415
Accrued mark-up — — — 20,302 — 20,302 20,302
Short-term borrowings 3 & 6 M

Kibor + 2%

t0 2.75% 644,680 — 644,680 — — — 644,680

TOTAL2016 694,748 262,532 957,280 309,123 — 309,123 1,266,403
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2015
Interest / Mark-up bearing Non Interest / Mark-up bearing
Interest/  Maturity  Maturity Sub Maturity Maturity Sub
markup upto one after one Total upto one after one Total Total
rate year year year year 2015

............................................ (Rupees in ‘000) .........ccoeerneeicmmninisss e
Financial Assets

Deposits — — — — 10,966 10,966 10,966
Trade debts — — — 11,635 — 11,635 11,635
Loans and advances — — — 2,059 — 2,059 2,059
Cash and bank balances — — — 9,749 — 9,749 9,749
TOTAL2015 — — — 20,443 10,966 34,409 34,409
Financial Liabilities
Long Term Finance 3 M Kibor +
2.5% 22,000 66,000 88,000 — — — 88,000
Liabilities against assets  12.04% to
subject to finance lease  15.17% 15,454 37,640 53,094 — — — 53,094
Trade & other payables 1M Kibor +
2% to 3% 4,822 — 4,822 236,354 — 236,354 241,176
Accrued mark-up — — — 13,756 — 13,756 13,756
Short-term borrowings 3 & 6 M Kibor
+ 2% to 3% 317,304 — 317,304 — — — 317,304
TOTAL2015 359,580 103,640 463,220 250,110 — 250,110 713,330
37 FINANCIAL RISKS MANAGEMENT
371 Financial Risk Management Objectives, Policies and Responsibilities

The Company's overall risk management programs focus on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on the Company's operations. The
Company's risk management policies are established to identify and analyze the risk faced by the
Company, to set appropriate risk limits and control, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits.

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of
Company’s risk management framework. The Board is also responsible for developing and
monitoring the Company's risk management policies. Risk management policies and systems are
reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company's activities.

The Company's senior management provides policies for overall risk management, as well as
policies covering specific areas such as foreign exchange risks, interest rate risks, credit risks,
financial instruments and investment of excess liquidity. It is the Company's policy that no trading
in derivatives for speculative purpose shall be undertaken.

The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

— Market risk

— Credit risk

— Liquidity risk
37.1.1 Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the value of the financial instrument may fluctuate as a result of changes
in market interest rates or the market price due to change in credit rating of the issuer of the
instrument, change in market sentiments, speculative activities, supply and demand of securities
and liquidity in the market. The company is subject to following market risks;

37.1.1.1 Foreign Exchange Risk

Foreign exchange risk represents the risk that the fair value of the future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. Foreign exchange risk
arises mainly from future economic transaction or receivables or payables that exist due to
transactions in foreign exchange. The Company is not exposed to currency risk as at balance
sheet date
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37.1.1.2 Interest / Mark-up rate risk

Interest/ mark-up rate risk is the risk that value or future cash flows of the financial instruments will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest / mark-up rates. The Company has mainly long
term finance, liabilities against asset subject to finance lease, short term borrowings and worker's
profit participation fund which are based at varying rates.

At the reporting date, the interest rate profile of the Company's significant interest / mark-up
bearing financial instruments are as follows:

2016 2015 2016 2015
Effective interest / markup rate Carrying amount
(in percent) (Rupees in '000)
Financial liabilities
Variable rate instruments
On Balance Sheet
Long Term Finance 3 M Kibor + 2% 3 M Kibor +
& 2.5% 2.5% 204,414 88,000
Finance lease obligation 11.07% to 12.04% to
12.04% 15.17% 107,592 53,094
Short term borrowings 3 & 6 M Kibor + 3 M Kibor +
2% to 2.75% 2% to 3% 644,680 317,304
Workers Profit
Participation Fund 12.5% 15% 594 4,822
957,280 463,220
Off Balance Sheet
ljarah Rentals 9.544% to 12.028% to
12.028% 12.42% 16,051 24,271

Sensitivity analysis
Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

The Company does not account for any fixed rate instruments at fair value through profit & loss
account.

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments.

A change of 100 basis points in interest / mark-up rates at the reporting date would have
decreased / (increased) profit before tax for the year by the amounts shown below. This analysis
assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign currency rates, remain constant. The
analysis is performed on the same basis for 2015.

.............. 2016 ....coemnnenes cerrnmnrnnnnns 2015 o,
(Rupees in '000 ) (Rupees in '000 )
Profit and loss 100 bp Profit and loss 100 bp
Financial liabilities increase decrease increase decrease
Cash flow sensitivity -
on balance sheet (9,573) 9,573 (4,632) 4,632
Cash flow sensitivity -
off balance sheet (161) 161 (243) 243

The sensitivity analysis prepared is not necessarily indicative of the effects on profit for the year
and assets / liabilities of the Company.
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37.1.1.3 Other Price Risk

Other price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows from a financial instrument will
fluctuate due to changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or
currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial
instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market.
The Company does not have financial instruments dependent on such market prices.

37.1.2  Credit Risk

Credit risk represents the accounting loss that would be recognized at the reporting date if counter
parties failed to perform as contracted. To manage exposure to credit risk in respect of trade
receivables, management performs credit reviews taking into account the customer's financial
position, past experience and other factors. Sales contracts and credit terms are approved by the
Chief Executive Officer and Executive Directors. The Company manages credit risk interalia by
setting out credit limits in relation to individual customers and / or by obtaining advance against the
sales and / or through letter of credits and / or by providing adequate allowance for doubtful debts.
Where considered necessary, advance payments are obtained from certain parties or by obtain
advance payments from counter parties.

Concentration of credit risk arises when a number of counter parties are engaged in similar
business activities or have similar economic features that would cause their abilities to meet
contractual obligation to be similarly effected by the changes in economic, political or other
conditions. The Company believes that it is not exposed to major concentration of credit risk.

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure before any
credit enhancements. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is:

2016 2015
(Rupees in ‘000)
Deposits 27,717 11,446
Trade Debts — 11,635
Loans and advances 1,358 2,059
Bank balances 122,891 9,667
151,966 34,807

a) Deposits

Deposits are due from leasing companies, ijarah deposits and others. Major amount of the deposits
are from leasing companies which have good credit ratings from the rating agencies and also the
lease deposits are secured against the leased asset. The other minor deposit are placed with others
against which the Company passes of assets. The Company believes that it is not exposed to
significant credit risk in this respect.

b) Loans and Advances

These represent balances due from employees that are mostly secured against their balances of
retirement benefits. Advances given to growers in cash or through fertilizer / seeds are recovered
through the adjustments in cane supplies payments in the ensuing season. Impairment allowance
has been made against the growers loan became past due and non recoverable. The Company
actively pursues for the recovery and based on past experience the Company does not expect that
these will fail to meet their obligations hence no impairment allowance is necessary.

c) Balances with Bank

The Company limits its exposure to credit risk by maintaining bank balances only with counter-parties
that have stable credit rating. Management actively monitors credit ratings of the counter parties and
given their high credit ratings, management does not expect that the counter party will fail to meet
their obligations.
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The bank balances along with the short term credit ratings are tabulated below:
2016 2015
(Rupees in ‘000)
A1+ 68,541 4,135
A1 101 694
A-1+ 54,249 4,837
A-1 1 1
122,891 9,667

37.1.2.1 Financial assets that are either past due or impaired

The credit quality of financial assets that are either past due or impaired can be assessed by
reference to historical information and external ratings or to historical information about counter
party default rates as disclosed in respective notes. Management believes that there are no
financial asset that are either past due or impaired.

37.1.3  Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk represent the risk where the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations
associated with financial liabilities. The maturity profile of the Company's financial assets and
liabilities as at the balance sheet date with respect to period lags is given in Note 36.

The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash and ensuring the fund
availability through adequate credit facilities. As at September 30, 2016, the Company has
available un-availed borrowing facilities of Rs. 1,080,320 thousands (2015: Rs. 1,207,696
thousands) and also has cash & bank balances of Rs. 123,255 thousands (2015: Rs. 9,749
thousands). Based on the above, the management believes that the Company is not significantly
exposed to the liquidity risk.

37.2 Capital Risk Management

The Company’s objective when managing capital is to safeguard the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. In order to
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, issue new shares and take other measures commensuration to the circumstances.
The Company finances its expansions projects through equity, borrowings and management of its
working capital with a view to maintaining an appropriate mix between various sources of finance
to minimize risk.

The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total
shareholders equity plus net debt. Net debt is calculated as total loans and borrowings less cash
and bank balances. The Company's strategy was to maintain leveraged gearing. The gearing
ratio as at balance sheet date is as follows:

2016 2015
(Rupees in ‘000)

Total financing and borrowings including finance lease 956,686 458,398
Less: Cash and bank balances (123,255) (9,749)
Net debt 833,431 448,649
Total Equity 467,266 451,265
Total capital employed 1,300,697 899,914
Gearing Ratio 64.08% 49.85%

71



Sanghar Sugar Mills Limited Annual Report 2016

38 FAIR VALUES / MEASUREMENT

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction in the principal (or most advantageous) market at the measurement date under current
market conditions (i.e. an exit price) regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique.

A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosure require the measurement of fair
values, for both financial, if any and non-financial assets and liabilities. When measuring the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and uses observable market data as far as possible. Fair values are categorized into
different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as
follows:

— Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

— Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

— Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair
value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety in the same level of the
fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements at fair value on a recurring
basis, the management recognizes transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of
the reporting period during which the change has occurred. There were no transfers between
different levels of fair values mentioned above.

Management assessed that the fair values of cash & cash equivalent and short term deposits, trade &
other receivable, trade payables, short term borrowing and other current liabilities approximate their
carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities of these instruments. For long term asset
and long term liabilities, management considers that their carrying values approximates fair value.

The fair value of land and buildings and plant and machinery is a level 3 recurring fair value
measurement. Management engages an independent external expert / valuator to carry out periodic
valuation of its non-financial assets (i.e. Land, Building and Plant and Machinery) and selection
criteria include market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professional standards are
maintained by the valuer. The Fair Values were determined with reference to market based
evidence, based on active market prices and relevant enquiries and information as considered
necessary, adjusted for any difference in nature, location or condition of the specific property. Recent
valuation was carried on September 30, 2014 and following factors were considered:

Land and Building The valuation is considered on the factors of location, need of the buyers, the
overall prevailing market situation and other considerations linked with this.

Plant and Machinery Factors taken into consideration in order to assess the present value of the
machinery include Make, Model, Quality, Operational Capacity, Existing
Condition, Demand and Resale Prospects, Depreciation and Obsolescence
etc.
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39 REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

The aggregate amount charged during the year for remuneration, including all benefits to the Chief
Executive, Directors and Executives of the Company were as follows:

Chief Executive Directors Executives Total

2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
............................................................ (Rupees in ‘000) .........ccoceerrneerremrinrrrersse e ee e

Non executive Directors'
meeting fee - 1 Director
(2015: 5 Directors) — — 85 200 — — 85 200

Managerial remuneration 5,262 5,383 1,867 1,192 7,048 7,142 14,177 13,717

Allowances & others

benefits 3,047 1,953 827 775 4,004 4,037 7,878 6,765
8,309 7,336 2,694 1,967 11,052 11,179 22,055 20,482

Number of persons 1 1 1 2 3 3 5 6

The Chief Executive and Executives as stated above are provided with the Company maintained cars
and telephone facilities.

During the year, all non-executive directors except one director, waived their directors' fee, which was
approved in the Board of Directors meeting.

40 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company in the normal course of business carried out transactions with related parties as
detailed below:

Relationship with Company Nature of Transaction 2016 2015
(Rupees in '000)

Key Management Personnel and

their relatives Purchase of sugarcane 39,857 27,069
Key Management Personnel and Advances disbursed
their relatives against cane supplies 22,914 14,594

Transactions, as applicable in relation to Directors of the Company and Key Management Personnel
(KMP) have been disclosed in note # 39. Key Management Personnel are those persons having
authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the entity directly or
indirectly.

Outstanding balances of related parties as of the balance sheet and maximum month end aggregate
balance during the year are disclosed in the respective notes to the financial statements. The
advances to related parties against supply of cane were disbursed for the crushing season 2015-16
and 2016-17 (2015: 2014-15 and 2015-16) out of which significant amount had already been adjusted
against cane supplied during the crushing season 2015-16 (2015: 2014-15) whereas remaining
amount has been adjusted subsequent to the year-end against the cane supplied for the current
crushing season 2016-17 (2015: 2015-16).

41 ENTITY - WIDE INFORMATION

41.1 The Company constitutes of a single reportable segment, the principal class of product is Sugar and
by products are Molasses and Baggasse. The Company is also engaged in the sale of electric power
generated in excess of in-house consumption which does not constitute reportable segment, as same
do not meet thresh-hold criteria.
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41.2 Information about geographical areas

The Company does not hold non-current assets in any foreign country. There is no revenues from
external customers for attribution to foreign countries in these financial statements. The Company is
also not dependant on any single customer. The analysis of sugar sales, by products and sales of
trading activities are as follows:

2016 2015
(Rupees in ‘000)
Local Sales - net 3,129,764 3,187,153
42 CAPACITY AND PRODUCTION
2016 2015
Quantity No. of Quantity No. of
M. Tons days M. Tons days
Crushing capacity 6,000 Per day 6,000 Per day
Capacity based on actual
working days 702,000 117 822,000 137
Actual crushing 563,617 117 630,317 137
Sucrose recovery (in %) 10.20 10.19
Sugar production from cane 57,387.5 64,271
421 Main reason for under utilization of production capacity is lesser availability of sugarcane during the
season.

43 NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

The number of employees as at year end was 548 (2015: 532) and average number of employees
during the year was 762 (2015: 755) included seasonal employees.

44 EVENT AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE
441 DONATION OF LAND

The Board of Directors in their meeting held on October 29, 2016 recommended donation of 5 acre
land out of total 320 acres Company’s land at factory located at Sanghar to Workers Welfare Fund,
Government of Pakistan, Islamabad, for the purpose of construction of Fifty Beds Hospital in the
vicinity of factory premises of Sanghar Sugar Mills. This has already been approved by the
shareholders of the Company in their Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on November 23, 2016.
The carrying value of the land as on the balance sheet date is Rs 1,461 thousand whereas its fair
value based on revaluation report of an independent professional valuator dated October 20, 2016 is
Rs. 2,500 thousand. In order to implement the Agreements, the formalities of transfer of Land and
other documentation are in process till date.

44.2 DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors of the Company in its meeting held on January 07, 2017 has proposed the
following:

Your Directors have decided to pay cash dividend @ Paisa Sixty (Rs. 0.60) per share i.e. 6% for the
year ended September 30, 2016.

45 DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE

These financial statements were authorized for issue onJanuary 07, 2017 by the Board of Directors of
the Company.

46 GENERAL
Figures have been rounded off to nearest thousand of rupees.

Chief Executive Director
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Pattern of Share Holding
As at September 30, 2016

Number of Share Holding Total
Shareholders From To Shares Held
908 1 100 22,686
114 101 500 32,000
80 501 1000 49,382
62 1001 5000 139,031
36 5001 10000 220,920
3 10001 15000 35,000
2 15001 20000 36,500
3 20001 25000 73,000
3 25001 30000 79,940
3 40001 45000 130,650
1 55001 60000 55,750
1 60001 65000 62,700
3 95001 100000 289,140
1 240001 245000 241,487
1 360001 365000 360,179
1 400001 405000 403,100
2 410001 415000 821,722
1 485001 490000 486,390
1 495001 500000 496,000
1 520001 525000 522,600
2 570001 575000 1,145,722
1 655001 660000 659,250
1 670001 675000 674,750
1 855001 860000 858,000
1 910001 915000 913,000
1 975001 980000 979,000
1 1060001 1065000 1,063,616
1 1090001 1095000 1,094,485

1,236 11,946,000

*

There is no shareholding in the slab not mentioned above.

Category of Shareholders Number of Percentage
Shares Held %

1 Directors, Chief Executive Officer, and

their spouse and minor children 1,844,216 15.4379
2 Associated Companies, undertakings - -

and related parties
3 Executives 25,290 0.2117
4 NIT & ICP 1,064,016 8.9069
5 Banks, DFls, NBFls, Mudarabas and

Pension Fund 101,550 0.8501
6 Insurance Companies 410,840 3.4391
7 Joint Stock Companies 16,428 0.1375
8 Shareholders holding 5% or more 5,092,607 42.6302
9 General Public - Local 3.391.053 28.3866

TOTAL

11,946,000

100.0000
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Detail of Pattern of Share Holding
As per Requirement of Code of Corporate Governance
As at September 30, 2016

Category Name Category wise Category
Number of Percentage Number of wise Percentage
shares held % shareholders  shares held %

Directors, Chief Executive and

their spouse and minor children 7 1,844,216 15.4379
Haji Khuda Bux Rajar 241,487 2.0215
* Mr. Ghulam Dastagir Rajar 659,250 5.5186
Mr. Ghulam Hyder 360,179 3.0151
* Mr. Rahim Bux 572,350 4.7911
Mr. Mohammad Aslam 3,300 0.0276
Mr. Qazi Shamsuddin 4,900 0.0410
Mrs. Khanzady W/o Haji Khuda Bux Rajar 2,750 0.0230

Associated Companies, Undertaking and
related parties - - -

Executives 1 25,290 0.2117

NIT & ICP 2 1,064,016 8.9069
* CDC - Trustee National Investment

(Unit) Trust 1,063,616 8.9035

Investment Corporation of Pakistan 400 0.0033

Banks, DFls, NBFls, Mudarabas

and Pension Funds 4 101,550 0.8501
Insurance Companies 2 410,840 3.4391
Joint Stock Companies 7 16,428 0.1375

* Shareholders holding 5% or more 6 5,092,607 42.6302
General Public - Local 1207 3,391,053 28.3866
TOTAL 1,236 11,946,000 100.000

* Shareholders having 5% or more shares marked as (*) are shown in their relevant categories. The name wise
details of the remaining shareholders having 5% or more given below:

Name of Shareholders Number of shares held Percentage %
Mr. Mehboob Ali 573,372 4.7997
Mr. Ali Ghulam 858,000 7.1823
Mr. Khuda Bux 913,000 7.6427
Mr. Abdul Jabbar 979,000 8.1952
Mr. Pir Baksh 1,094,485 9.1620
Mr. Gul Mohammad 674,750 5.6483

5,092,607 42.6302

Information under clause (xvi) (I) of the Code of Corporate Governance

The Directors, Executives and their spouse and their minor children have not undertaken any trading of Company's
shares during the year ended September 30, 2016.
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Sanghar Sugar Mills Limited

PROXY FORM

W i OF e
District ... CNIC NO. oo being a member of SANGHAR SUGAR
MILLS LIMITED, here by appoint Mr./MS. .........cccoiiiiiiiiiiiiiee e (o)
............................................... CNIC No. ..cooevviiveeiviiiieeeiviiieeeeeeee.. Folio No. ..., CDC Participant’s
ID. NO. e Sub Account NO. ...ooooviiiieeenen. holding ........cccuvveneee Shares of the Company,

as my/our Proxy in my/our absence to attend and vote for me/us on my/our behalf at the Annual General Meeting
of the Company to be held on Tuesday, January 31, 2017 at 11:30 a.m. at Haji Abdullah Muslim Gymkhana, Old
Lobby (Muslim Gymkhana), Near Shaeen Complex, Awan-e-Sadar, Sadar Town, Karachi and at any
adjournment thereof.

Signedthis................. dayof....cooeeeeieeeieiiiiiins 2017 in the presence of:

Signature on Folio No. C.D.C. . D. Sub Account No. | No. of Shares held

Five Rupees Revenue Stamp

Witness 1 Witness 2

SIgnature @ ..o Signature @ ..o
NEAME & e NAME & oo
CNIC NO.: oo CNIC NO.: oottt
AAIESS & oo AArESS & oo
NOTES:

1)  Proxy should be member of the Company and should produce his/her CNIC at the time of meeting for

identification.

2)  Signature of the member must agree with the specimen signature registered with the Company.

3) CDCAccountholder or Sub Accountant holder should enclose valid copy of his/her CNIC/ Passport with Proxy
Form. Representatives of the Corporate members should bring the necessary documents as usually required
for such purpose.

4) Proxy Form dully filled-in and signed must be deposited with the Company Secretary at Company's
Registered Office C-27, Plot No. No F-24, Block-9, Clifton, Karachi not later than 48 hours before the time fixed
for holding this meeting.

5) Ifthe memberis a corporate entity its common seal should be affixed to the proxy.

6) Ifamemberappoints more than one proxy and more than one instruments of proxy are deposited by a member
with the Company, all such instruments of proxy shall be rendered invalid.
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REGISTERED / HEAD OFFICE:

C-27, Plot No. F-24, Block-9, Clifton, Karachi-75600
Phone: 021-35371441 to 43 (three lines)

Fax: 021-35371444

Email: info@sangharsugarmills.com

Website: www.sangharsugarmills.com

MANUFACTURING FACILITIES:

13th Km, Sanghar — Sindhri Road, Deh Kehore,
District Sanghar, Sindh

Phone : (0345) 3737001 — 8222911
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